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CONG BO THONG TIN PINH KY BAO CAO TAI CHINH
Kinh giri: S& Giao dich Chirng khoén Ha Ni

Thye hién quy dinh tai khoan 3 Piéu 14 Thong tu sd 96/2020/TT-BTC ngay 16/11/2020 cua
B Tai chinh huéng ddn cong bd thong tin trén thi trudmg chimg khoan, Cong Ty Cé phan Tap
Poan MGROUP thuc hién cong bd thong tin béo céo tai chinh (BCTC) kiém toén riéng va hgp
nhit ndm 2024 véi S¢ Giao dich Chirng khodn Ha Noi nhu sau:

1. Tén td chirc : Cong Ty Cd Phén Tap Poan MGROUP

- Ma chirng khoan : MGR

- Diachi 8 T:’ing 19, Khu A, Toa nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén
Pinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Quén 1, TPHCM

- Dién thoai lién hé/Tel : 028.7106.8910 Fax:

-  Email : info@mgroup.vn Website: www.mgroup.vn

2. Noi Dung thong tin cong bo:
Bao cdo tai chinh kiém todn riéng va hgp nhit nam 2024 ctia Céng ty CP Tap Doan
MGROUP :

O BCTC riéng (TCNY khéng c6 cong ty con va don vi ké todn cép trén ¢6 don vj tryc
thugce);

M BCTC hgp nhit (TCNY ¢6 cong ty con);
[0 BCTC tdng hgp (TCNY c6 don vi ké todn trye thude td chirc bd may ké toén riéng).
- Cac truong hop thude dién phai giai trinh nguyén nhan:

+ Td chirc kiém toan dua ra y kién khong phai 12 ¥ kién chap nhén toan phéan déi véi BCTC
(d6i véi BCTC duge kiém toan nim 2024):

OCé O Khoéng
Vin ban giai trinh trong trudng hop tich co:
Oco [J Khong

+ Loi nhudn sau thué trong ky bao cdo c6 sur chénh léch trude va sau kiém todn tir 5% tré
lén, chuyén tir 15 sang 13i hodic nguoc lai (d6i vai BCTC dugce kiém todn nam 2024):

Co [J Khong
Vién ban giai trinh trong trudng hgp tich co:



U Co L] Khong

+ Loi nhudn sau thé thu nhip doanh nghiép tai bdo céo két qua kinh doanh cua ky béo céo
thay doi tir 10% tr 1én so véi bao cdo ciing ky nam trudc:

Cé (J Khéng
Vin ban gidi trinh trong trudng hop tich cé:
M Cé O Khéng

+ Loi nhudn sau thué trong ky béo céo bi 15, chuyén tir 1di & béo cdo cing ky nim trude
sang 16 & ky nay hodc ngugc lai:

aeh . - O Khong
Vén ban giai trinh trong trudng hop tich co:
O Cé [J Khéng

Thong tin nay dugc cdng bd trén trang cong bd thoéng tin cua cong ty tai dia chi
info.mgroup.vn vao ngay 26/03/2025.

Chiing t6i xin cam két céc thong tin cong bd trén déy 1a ding sy thit va hoan toan chiu
trach nhiém trude phap luat vé ndi dung céc thdng tin cong bd.

Tai ligu dinh kém: PAI DIEN TO cm'rc
- ‘Bdo cdo tai chinh kiém todn riéng va Ngudi dai dién !hcl_ : .é : luaUN Q CBTT
hop rhét ndm 2024; (Ky, ghl_ ra Hplel
- Gidi trinh bién dong kinh doanh bdo 4

cdo riéng va hop nhat ndm 2024.
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CONG TY CO PHAN CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

TAP POAN MGROUP Poc 1ap — Tw do — Hanh phic
S6: 05/2025/CV-MGROUP TP. H6 Chi Minh, ngay 26 théng 3 nam 2025

V/v: Gidi trinh bién dgng kinh doanh
bdo cdo hop nhdt nam 2024.

Kinh giti: Uy Ban Chirng Khoan Nha Nwéc;
S¢ Giao dich Chirng khoan Ha Noi.

Cong ty ¢6 phan Tap doan MGROUP hoat déng theo Gidy chimg nhén ding ky
doanh nghiép s6 0312267721 do s ké hoach dau tu thanh phé Hb Chi Minh cép.

Can ctr theo thong tu sb 96/2020/TT-BTC ngay 16/11/2020 vé viéc huéng dan
cong bo théng tin trén thi trudong chung khoan.

Chiing t6i xin giai trinh bién dong kinh doanh trén béo cdo tai chinh hgp nhét nim
2024 so vai bdo cdo tai chinh hop nhit nam 2023 (15):

T Chi tiéu Niim 2024 Niim 2023 Chénh léch TV I8
01 | Doash Thu 1.875.818.093 |  8.628.902.864 |  -6.753.084.771 | -78.26%
02 | Loi nhusn gép 54.545.455 882.406.612 -827.861.157 | -93,82%
03 | Chi phi QLDN 16.780.940.858 | 18.302.894.011 |  -1.521.953.153
04 | Loi nhugn khdc -909.276.574 881.464.925 |  -1.790.741.499 | -203,16%
05 |Loi nhudn sau| -17.631725411 -16946.967.833 -684.757.578

thué

Loi nhudn sau thué trén bao céo tai chinh hop nhét ndm 2024 18 (17.631.725.411)
dong la do doanh thu nam 2024 1.875.818.093 dong giam 78,26% so voi nam 2023,

1




Loi nhuin khac cua cong ty 1a (909.276.574) dong giam 203,16%, va lgi nhuén gop ca
nam la 54.545.455 ddng, thép hon nim 2023 13 93.82%.

Doanh thu thap va chi phi quan 1y 16n 12 nguyén nhan lam cho doanh nghiép bi
16 nam 2024.

Trén day la nhimg giai trinh cua cong ty c¢b phan tap doan MGROUP vé bién
dong kinh doanh trén bao cdo tai chinh hop nhét nam 2024.

Tran trong!

Noi nhin
Nhur trén;

= Luu: VT./.




CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP
Bio cdo tai chinh hop nhit
Cho nim tai chinh két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2024
da dwge kiem todn




CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dja chi: Tang 19, Toéa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM

MUC LUC

NOI DUNG

BAO CAO CUA BAN TONG GIAM BOC

BAO CAO KIEM TOAN POC LAP

BAO CAO TAI CHINH HQP NHAT PA PUQC KIEM TOAN
Béng cin dbi ké todn hop nhit

Béo céo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh hop nhit

Biéo céo luu chuyén tién té hop nhét

Bién thuyét minh B4o céo tai chinh hop nhét

Trang
02-03

04 - 05

06 - 08

09
10-11
12-32



CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP ?
Dia chi: Tang 19, Toa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP.HCM

BAO CAO CUA BAN TONG GIAM POC

Ban Téng Gidm déc Céng ty cb phin Tap doan MGROUP sau diy goi tit 14 (“Céng ty”) trinh bay Béo
c4o clia minh va Béo c4o tai chinh hgp nhat clia cong ty cho nam tai chinh két thic vio ngay 31/12/2024.

KHAI QUAT

Cong ty cd phan Tap doan MGROUP duge chuyén ddi tir Cong ty ¢b phan Mland VIETNAM. Gidy
chiing nhin ding ky kinh doanh 1dn dau s6 0312267721 ngay 08/05/2013, ding ky thay ddi Ian thir 13
ngdy 13/4/2023 do S& Ké Hoach va PAu Tu Thanh Phé Hb Chi Minh cép.

Hoat dong chinh ciia Cong ty la: Xir ly di¥ ligu, cho thué va cdc hoat dong lién quan. Tu vAn, mbi gidi,
déu gia bat dong san, ddu gia quyén sir dung dat. Hoat dong kién triic va tr vén k¥ thudt c6 lién quan. Pai
Iy, mdi gii, ddu gid. Kinh doanh bit dong san, quyén sir dung dit thudc chii s¢ hiru, chu sir dung hogc di
thué. Dich vu thong tin khac.

Tru s& chinh ciia Cong ty tai: Tang 19, Toéa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu,
Phudmg Pa Kao, Quan 1, Tp.HCM, Viét Nam.

Cic s kién sau ngay khoéa sb ké todn Iap bao céo tai chinh hop nhét

Khong c6 sy kién trong yéu ndo xay ra sau ngy khoa sb ké toan 14p Béo céo tai chinh hop nhét doi hoi
duge diéu chinh hay cong b trén Bao céo tai chinh hgp nhét.

Cic thanh vién ciia Hoi dong Quin tri va Ban Téng Gidm déc, Ban kiém sodt trong nim va dén
ngay lip bdo cdo nay nhir sau:

Hpi dong Quan tri

f)ng Mai Pirc Hung Chu tich
Ong Mai Birc Hoan Thanh vién
Ong Mai Nam Chwong Thanh vién
Ong Nguyén Quéc Hoan Thanh vién
Ong Lé Tu Thanh vién

Ban Téng Gidm déc

Ong Mai Nam Chuong Téng Giam dbc
Ong Lé Tu Phé6 Tong Giam dbc

Ban kiém sodt

Ba Cao Thi Giang Trudng ban
Ba Nguyen Thi Van Anh Thanh vién
Ba Dao Nhéit Anh Thanh vién

Nguwoi dai dién theo phap ludt
Nguoi dai dién theo phép luét cia Cong ty trong nam va tai ngay ldp béo cdo nay nhu sau:

Ong Mai Nam Chwong Téng Giam dbc
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP
Dia chi: Tang 19, Toa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP.HCM
Biio cdo ciia Ban Tdng giam dbc (tiép theo)

Kiém toén vién
Cbng ty TNHH Kiém toan NVA da thuc hién kiém toan cic Bao céo tai chinh hop nhét cho Cong ty.
Cong bb trich nhiém ciia Ban Tdng Gidm dbc d6i véi Bdo cdo tai chinh hop nhit

Ban Téng Giam déc Cong ty chiu trich nhiém vé viéc lap Bdo cdo tai chinh hop nhét phan 4nh trung
thye, hop 1y tinh hinh hoat dong, két qua hoat dong kinh doanh hop nhét va tinh hinh lwu chuyén tién &
hop nhét ctia Céng ty trong nim. Trong qué trinh ldp Béo céo tai chinh hop nhéit, Ban Tng Gidm dbc
Cong ty cam két da tuén thi cdc yéu cu sau:

e Luya chon céc chinh sach ké toan thich hop va dp dung céc chinh sich nay mot cach nhat quén;

e Dua ra cdc danh gia va dy dodn hop ly va thén trong;

e Lap va trinh bay cdc béo céo tai chinh hop nhit trén co s& tudn thu céc chuén myc ké toan, ché d¢ ké
toan va cac quy dinh c6 lién quan hién hanh;

e Lap cac bao cao tai chinh hop nhét dya trén co s& hoat dong kinh doanh lién tuc, trir truémg hop
khong thé cho ring Cong ty sé tiép tuc hoat dong kinh doanh.

e Thiét lgp va thyc hién hg théng kiém soat ndi bd mot cach hiru hiéu nhim han ché riii ro ¢6 sai sét
trong yéu do gian 1an hoic nhim lan trong viéc lap va trinh bay Béo céo tai chinh hop nhit.

Ban Tdng Gidm déc Cong ty dam bao ring cic sb ké toan duge lru gilr @& phan 4nh tinh hinh tai chinh
clia Cong ty, véi mirc d trung thyc, hop ly tai bét cir thoi diém nao va ddm bao ring Bdo cdo tai chinh
hop nhét tudn thi cic quy dinh hién hanh ctia Nha nuéc. Ddng thdi ¢6 trach nhiém trong viéc bdo dam an
toan tai san clia Cong ty va thuc hién céc bién phap thich hgp d& ngin chan, phat hién cac hanh vi gian
18n va céc vi pham khac.

Ban Téng Gidm déc Cong ty da phé chuin Béo cdo tai chinh hgp nhét dinh kém tir trang 06 dén trang 32
va cam két ring Béo cdo tai chinh hop nhét da phan 4nh trung thyc va hop 1y tinh hinh tai chinh hop nhét
ciia Cong ty tai thoi diém ngay 31/12/2024 két qua hoat dong kinh doanh hop nhét va tinh hinh luwu
chuyén tién t& hop nhét cho nim tai chinh két thic cing ngay, phit hop véi chudn muc, ché @6 ké toan
Viét Nam va tuan tht cac quy dinh hién hanh c6 lién quan.

L0
Mai Nam Chwong
Tong Gidm déc

Thanh phé H6 Chi Minh, ngay 26 thang 03 nim 2025




CONG TY TNHH KIEM TOAN NVA Tel :(028)3910 3908 - (028) 3910 6162

._\'_A\’ NVA AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED Foxells AR EanEY

$6 54/3, Buiing Nguyén Binh Khiém, Phuéng Da Kao, Ve e

AUDIT AND ASSURANCE Quén 1, Thanh phé H& Chi Minh

S6: 29.11.3.2/24/BCTC/NVA.VP
BAO CAO KIEM TOAN PQC LAP

Kinh giri: Quy ¢ dong, Hpi ddng Quan tri va Ban Tong Giam déc
Cong ty cb phan Tip doan MGROUP

Chiing t6i d4 kiém todn Bdo c4o tai chinh hop nhét kém theo clia Céng ty cd phan Tap doin MGROUP,
dugc 1ap ngay 26/03/2025, tir trang 06 dén trang 32, bao gdm: Bang can d6i ké toan hop nhét tai ngay
31/12/2024, Béo céo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh hgp nhét, Bao céo hru chuyén tién t& hop nhét cho
nim tai chinh két thiic cling ngay va Ban thuyét minh Béo céo tai chinh hop nhét.

Tréich nhiém ciia Ban Tdng Gidm dc

Ban Tdng Giam déc Cong ty chju tréach nhiém vé viéc 1ap va trinh bay trung thyuc va hop 1y Béo cdo tai
chinh hop nhét clia Céng ty theo chudn myc ké toan, ché d6 ké todn doanh nghiép Viét Nam va céc quy
dinh phap 1y c6 lién quan dén viéc 1ap va trinh bay Bao cdo tai chinh hop nhét va chiu trich nhiém vé
kiém sodt ndi b ma Ban Téng Gidm dbc xac dinh 14 cin thiét d& dam béo cho viéc 1ap va trinh bay Béo
céo tai chinh hop nhét khéng c6 sai sét trong yéu do gian 14n hodic nhim Ian.

Tréch nhiém ciia Kiém todn vién

Tréach nhiém ca chiing t6i 14 dura ra y kién vé Béo céo tai chinh hop nhét dya trén két qué cia cudc kiém
toan. Chiing t6i da tién hanh kiém toén theo cac chuén myc kiém toan Viét Nam. Céc chuin muc ndy yéu
cau chiing t6i tuan thi chuin myc va cdc quy dinh vé dao dirc nghé nghiép, 14p ké hoach va thyuc hién
cude kiém todn dé dat dugce sy dam bao hop 1y vé viée lidu bao céo tai chinh hop nhét ciia Céng ty ¢6 con
sai s6t trong yéu hay khong.

Céng viée kiém todn bao gdm thyc hién céc thi tuc nhim thu thip cac bing chimg kiém toan vé céc sb
liéu va thuyét minh trén bao céo tai chinh hgp nhét . Cac thi tuc kiém toén duoc lya chon dwa trén xét
doén cia kiém toan vién, bao gdm d4nh gi4 rii ro c6 sai st trong yéu trong béo céo tai chinh hop nhét do
gian I4n hodc nhim I&n. Khi thyc hién dénh gi4 céc rii ro nay, kiém toén vién da xem xét kiém so4t noi
bd clia Cong ty lién quan dén viéc 1ap va trinh bay bao céo tai chinh hop nhét trung thuc, hop 1y nhim
thiét ké céc th tyc kiém toan phd hop véi tinh hinh thyc té, tuy nhién khong nhim muc dich dua ra y
kién vé hiéu qua ctia kiém soat ndi by clia Céng ty. Cong viéc kiém toan ciing bao gdm danh gi4 tinh
thich hop clia cac chinh séch ké toan dugc ap dung va tinh hop 1y clia cac uée tinh ké toén ciia Ban Téng
Giam ddc cling nhu danh gi4 viéc trinh bay tdng thé Bao céo tai chinh hop nhét.

Chiing t3i tin tudng ring c4c bing chimg kiém toan ma chiing t6i da thu thap dugc 1a diy di va thich hop
1am co s& cho ¥ kién kiém toan ciia chiing toi.

X HHNZS



Y kién ciia kiém todn vién

Theo ¥ kién clia ching t6i, Béo céo tai chinh hgp nhit da phan 4nh trung thuc va hop 1y, trén cac khia
canh trong yéu tinh hinh tai chinh hgp nhét cia Céng ty cd phin Tap doan MGROUP tai ngay
31/12/2024, ciing nhu két qua hoat dong kinh doanh hop nhét va tinh hinh lru chuyén tién t¢ hop nhét
trong nam tai chinh két thic cing ngay, phi hgp v&i chuén muc ké toén va ché do ké toan doanh nghiép
Viét Nam hién hanh va cac quy dinh phap 1y c6 lién quan dén viéc lap va trinh bay Béo céo tai chinh hop
nhat.

Thanh phd H6 Chi Minh, ngay 26 thang 03 nim 2025
Cong ty TNHH Kiém toin NVA
Phé Rg Kiém todn vién

G

Cao Thi Hong Nga Nguyén Hong Nga
Gidy CN DKHN kiém toan s6: 0613-2023-152-1 Giéy CN DKHN kiém toan s6: 1266-2023-152-1




CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Tang 19, Tda nha Indochina Park Tower, $6 4 Nguy&n Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM

BAO CAO TAI CHINH
BANG CAN POI KE TOAN HQP NHAT
Tai ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2024
BDon vj tinh: VND
TAI SAN Mg Thuyét Cubi nim Phu nimll
S minh

A . TAI SAN NGAN HAN 100 63.752.040.010 70.038.859.096

L. Tién va céc khodn twong dwong tién 110 | V.01 2.875.238.795 7.999.547.746

1. Tién 111 2.875.238.795 7.999.547.746

2. Céc khoan twong dwong tidn 112 - -

I1. PAu tir tai chinh ngén han 120 - -

1. Chitng khoan kinh doanh 121 - -

2. Du phong gidm gia chirng khoén kinh doanh 122 - -

3. PAu tu nim gitr &n ngay ddo han 123 - .

III. Céc khodn phai thu ngiin han 130 46.576.672.771 51.198.796.492

1. Phai thu ngén han ctia khich hang 131 | V.02 5.908.607.540 6.528.296.257

2. Tra trudc cho ngudi ban ngén han 132 | V.03 35.001.641.280 38.090.133.683

3. Phai thu ndi bd ngén han : 133 . -

4. Phai thu theo tién d6 ké hoach hop déng xdy dung| 134 . %

5. Phai thu v& cho vay ngén han 135 - -

6. Cac khoan phai thu ngén han khac 136 | V.04 13.647.016.988 13.682.297.988

7. Dy phong phai thu ngén han kho doi 137 | V.05 (7.980.593.037) (7.101.931.436)

IV. Hang tdn kho 140 | V.06 11.797.207.820 8.631.280.455

1. Hang tbn kho 141 11.797.207.820 8.631.280.455

2. Dy phong giam gi4 hang tdn kho 149 - -

V. Tai san ngén han khic 150 2.502.920.624 2.209.234.403

1. Chi phi tra truéc ngén han 151 | v.07 1.702.424 104.169.401

2. Thué GTGT durge khéu trir 152 2.388.013.954 1.991.860.756

3. Thué va céc khoan khac phai thu nha nuéce 154 | V.12 113.204.246 113.204.246

4. Tai san ngén han khéc 155 - -

B. TAI SAN DAI HAN 200 119.998.609.276 133.445.354.951

I. Céc khodn phai thu dai han 210 3.649.016.000 5.280.000.000

1. Phai thu dai han ctia khéch hang 211 - -

2. V6n kinh doanh & don vi true thude 212 - -

3. Phai thu dai han ndi bd 213 - -

4. Phai thu vé cho vay dai han 215 - -

5. Phai thu dai han khac 216 | V.04 4.710.000.000 5.780.000.000
(6. Dy phong phai thu dai han khé doi 219 (1.060.984.000) (500.000.000)




CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Tang 19, Toa nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguy&n Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM

BAO CAO TAI CHINH
Béng cin ddi ké toan hop nhit (tiép theo)

BPon vj tinh: VND

TAI SAN M& |Thuyt Cubi n&m DAu nim|
sb minh
IL. TAi sén ¢6 djnh 220 748.828.504 306.038.976
1. Tai san ¢b dinh hiru hinh 221 | V.08 748.828.504 306.038.976

- Nguyén gi4 222 1.207.716.000 1.293.324.454

- Gi4 trj hao mdn luy ké 223 (458.887.496) (987.285.478)|
2. Tai san ¢b dinh thué tai chinh 224 = =

- Nguyén gié 225 - -

- Gia trj hao mon luy ké 226 - -

3. Tai san ¢b dinh v hinh 227 - -

- Nguyén gia 228 - -

- Gi trj hao mdn lu§ ké 229 - .
I11. BAt djng san ddu twr 230 - -

- Nguyén gia 231 - -

- Gid tri hao mon luy ké 232 - .
IV. Ti sdn d& dang dai han 240 49.623.353.272 50.571.491.075
1. Chi phi san xuft, kinh doanh dé& dang dai han 241 | V.09 49.623.353.272 50.571.491.075
2. Chi phi xdy dung co ban d& dang 242 E -
V. Céic khodn diu twr tdi chinh dai han 250 - -
VL. Tai san dai han khic 260 65.977.411.500 77.287.824.900
1. Chi pht tra truéc dai han 261 | V.07 - -

2. Tai san thué thu nhap hodn lai 262 - -

3. Tai san dai han khac 268 . -

4. Lgi thé thuong mai 269 65.977.411.500 77.287.824.900
TONG CONG TAI SAN 270 183.750.649.286 |  203.484.214.047
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Tang 19, Téa nha Indochina Park Tower, S§ 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM

BAO CAO TAI CHINH
Bing ciin d6i ké todn hop nhét (tiép theo)

Don vj tinh: VND

NGUON VON Mg ZHn Cubi niim Phu nim|
s minh

A .NQ PHAI TRA 300 17.962.167.990 20.064.007.340
I. No ngéin han : 310 10.522.167.990 12.624.007.340
1. Phai trd ngudi bén ngin han 311 | V.10 3.707.477.629 5.317.006.945
2. Ngwdi mua tra tién truée ngéin han 312 | V.11 2.430.204.770 2.430.204.770
3. Thué va céc khoan phai nop Nha nuéc 313 | V.12 13.303.797 38.099.208
4. Phai trd ngudi lao dong 314 793.996.558 949.152.791
5. Chi phf phai tra ngén han 315 | V.13 . 99.480.626
6. Phai tra ndi bd 316 - .
7. Phai tra theo tién d9 ké hoach hop ddng xay dung | 317 - -
8. Doanh thu chua thyc hién ngén han 318 - -
9. C4c khoan phai tra, phai np khac ngén han 319 | V.14 3.577.185.236 3.790.063.000
10. Vay va ng thué tai chinh ngén han 320 - -
11. Dy phong phai tra ngén han 321 - -
12. Qu¥ khen thudng, phic loi 322 - -
II. N¢ dai han 330 7.440.000.000 7.440.000.000
1. Phai tré dai han ngudi bén 331 - -
2. Doanh thu chura thyre hién dai han 336 - -
3. Phai tra dai han khéc 337 | V.14 7.440.000.000 7.440.000.000
4. Vay va ng thué tai chinh dai han 338 - -
B.VON CHU SO HU'U 400 165.788.481.297 183.420.206.708
L. Vén chii s& hiru 410 | V.15 165.788.481.297 183.420.206.708
1. Vén gép cua chi s& hiru 411 200.000.000.000 200.000.000.000
- C6 phiéu phé thdng c6 quyén biéu quyét 411a 200.000.000.000 200.000.000.000
- Cd phiéu wu dai 411b s .
2. Thing du v6n cb phén 412 - -
3. C phiéu quy 414 - -
3. Quy dAu tu phét trién 418 - -
2. Loi nhudn sau thué chura phan phédi ; 421 (55.798.049.991) (38.750.100.125)
- LNST chua phén phéi lily ké dén cubi ky truéc | 421a (38.750.100.125)|  (22.118.311.066)
- LNST chua phén phéi ky nay 421b (17.047.949.866)|  (16.631.789.059)
3. Loi fch cb dong khéng kiém soét 429 21.586.531.288 22.170.306.833
I1. Ngudn kinh phi 430 - -

TONG CONG NGUON VON 440 183.750.649:286 |  203.484.214.047
Ngubi 1ap biéu K& toéin trudng ~ - Tbng

cO PHAL
{ ] e TAP BC

Nguyén Thj Yén Anh Nguyé&n Thj Yén Anh Mai Nam Chuong

Thanh phé Hé Chi Minh, ngay 26 thang 03 nim 2025



CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Tang 19, Tda nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM

BAO CAO TAI CHINH

BAO CAO KET QUA HOAT PONG KINH DOANH HQP NHAT

Nim 2024
Don vj tinh: VND
Chi tiéu Mai | Thuyét Nim nay Nim trudc
s6 | minh

1. Doanh thu bén hang va cung cfp dich vu 01 | VIOI1 1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864
2. Céc khoan giam trir doanh thu 02 - -
3. Doanh thu thudn v& ban hang va cung cdp dich vu| 10 | VI.02 1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864
4. Gia von hang ban 11 | VI.0O3 1.821.272.638 7.746.496.252
5. Lgi nhufn gfp vé ban hang va cung cip dichvy | 20 54.545.455 882.406.612
6. Doanh thu hoat ddng tai chinh 21 | VL04 3.946.566 6.360.006
7. Chi phi tai chinh 22 | VIO5 - 48.947.393
Trong do: chi phi 1di vay 23 - 48.947.393 \1
8. Phén 1i hoac 13 trong cong ty lién két, lién doanh 24 B - /,J
9. Chi phi ban hang 25 | VI.06 - 365.357.972
10. Chi phi quéan ly doanh nghiép 26 | VI.07 16.780.940.858 18.302.894.011
11. Lgi nhuén thuin tir hoat djng kinh doanh 30 (16.722.448.837) (17.828.432.758)
12. Thu nhap khéc 31 | V108 1.282.343.787 1.650.023.777
13. Chi phi khac 32 | V1.09 2.191.620.361 768.558.852
14. Loi nhufn khéc 40 (909.276.574) 881.464.925
15. Tong lgi nhudn ké todn trude thué 50 (17.631.725.411) (16.946.967.833)
16. Chi phi thué TNDN hién hanh 51 « s
17. Chi phi thué TNDN ho#n lai 52 . -
18. Loi nhufin sau thué thu nhép doanh nghiép 60 (17.631.725.411) (16.946.967.833)
18.1 Loi nhugin sau thué clia cong ty me 61 (17.047.949.866) (16.631.789.059)
18.2 Loi nhudn sau thué cia c6 dong khéng kiém sodt | 62 (583.775.545) (315. 173.774)I
19. Lai co ban trén cd phiéu 70 | VL10 852) (832)
20. Lai suy giam trén cd phiéu 71 | VL10 852) (832)'
Ngui lap biéu Ké todn trudng \ JII'EngGHSm doc

Nguyén Thi Yén Anh
Thanh phé Hb Chi Minh, ngay 26 thang 03 nam 2025

Nguyén Thj Yén Anh

Mai Nam Chuong




CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Téng 19, Tda nha Indochina Park Tower, S 4 Nguyén Pinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM

BAO CAO TAI CHINH
BAO CAO LUU CHUYEN TIEN TE HQP NHAT
(Theo phwong phép gidn tiép)
Nim 2024
Don vj tinh: VND

Chi tiéu M sb Nim nay Nim truéd
L. Luu chuyén tién tir hoat dfng kinh doanh
1. Lgi nhudn tricée thué 01 (17.631.725.411)|  (16.946.967.833)
2. Diéu chinh cdc khodn
- Khéu hao tai san c6 dinh va bt dong san diu tu 02 185.008.804 406.386.648
- C4c khoan dy phong 03 1.439.645.601 2.337.003.124
- Lii, 16 chénh léch ty gia héi dodi do danh gi4 lai céc khoan [ 04 - -
muc tién té c6 gbc ngoai té .
- Lai, 13 tir hoat dong dAu tu 05 (286.290.353) 170.695.91% {
- Chi phi di vay 06 - 48.947.39
- Céc khoan diéu chinh khéc 07 - - o
3. Loi nhudn (16) tir hoat djng kinh doanh trwéc nhitng thay | 08 (16.293.361.359)|  (13.983.934.753)|". 7
dbi von liwu dpng
- Tang, gidm céc khoan phai thu 09 4.417.308.922 8.743.210.116
- Ting, gidm hang tdn kho 10 (2.217.789.562) (1.116.739.207)
- Tang, gidm céc khoan phai tra (khong ké 13i vay phai tra, thué | 11 (2.101.839.350) (420.298.160)
thu nhép phai ndp)
- Ting, giam chi phi tra truéc 12 11.412.880.377 11.235.137.588
- Téng, giam chimng khoén kinh doanh 13 - -
- Tién 14i vay da tra 14 . (48.947.393)
- Thué thu nhép doanh nghiép da nép 15 - -
- Tién thu khéc tir hoat ddng kinh doanh 16 - -
- Tién chi kh4c tir hoat dong kinh doanh 17 - -
Luru chuyén tién thudn tir hoat kinh doanh 20 (4.782.800.972) 4.408.428.191
I1. Luu chuyén tién thudin tir hoat ddng dAu twr
1. Tién chi 48 mua s&m, x4y dyng TSCP va cdc TSDH khéc 21 (800.000.000) -
2. Tién thu tir thanh 1y, nhugng ban TSCD va cac TSDH khac 22 454.545.455 363.636.364
3. Tién chi cho vay, mua céc cOng cu ng ctia don vi khac 23 - -
4. Tién thu hdi cho vay, ban lai cic cong cu ng ciia don vi khéc 24 - -
5. Tién chi diu tu, gép vén vao don vi khéc 25 - -
6. Tién thu hdi dau tur, gop vdn vao don vi khéc 26 s ‘
7. Tién thu 14i cho vay, cb tirc va lgi nhuén dwgc chia 27 3.946.566 6.360.006
Luu chuyén tién thudn tir hogt dpng ddu tr 30 (341.507.979) 369.996.370
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Téng 19, Toa nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM

BAO CAO TAI CHINH
Béo cfio lru chuyén tién t¢ hop nhit (tiép theo)

Don vj tinh: VND

Chi tiéu Ma s Niim nay Nim truéd
I11. Luu chuyén tién thudn tir hoat ddng tai chinh
1. Tién thu tir phat hanh cb phiéu, nhén vén gép cta chisd httu | 31 - -
2. Tién chi tra von gop cho chii s¢ hiru, mua lai cb phiéu 32 - -
3. Tién vay ngén han, dai han nhin dugc 33 - -
4, Tién chi tra ng gbc vay 34 - (467.622.944)
5. Tién chi tra ng thué tai chinh 35 - -
6. Cb tirc, lgi nhuén d3 tra cho chu sé& hiru 36 - -
Liru chuyén tién thudn tir hogt dpng tai chinh 40 - (467.622.944)
Luru chuyén tién thuin trong ky 50 (5.124.308.951) 4.310.801.617
Tién va twong duong tién tdn diu ky 60 7.999.547.746 3.688.746.129
Anh huéng ctia thay ddi ty gi4 hdi dodi quy dbi ngoai té 61 - -
Tién va twong duong tién tdn cudi ky 70 2.875.238.795 7.999.547.746

Ngudi 1dp biéu K& todn trudng

& A

Nguyén Thi Yén Anh Nguyén Thj Yén Anh
Thanh ph6 Hd Chi Minh, ngay 26 thang 03 nam 2025
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP =
Dia chi: Tang 19, Toa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP.HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

BAN THUYET MINH BAO CAO TAI CHINH HQP NHAT
Niam 2024

==
-

PAC PIEM HOAT PONG CUA DOANH NGHIEP

1. Hinh thirc sé hitu

Céng ty cb phin Tap doan MGROUP dugc chuyén ddi tir Cong ty cé phin Mland VIETNAM. Gidy
chirng nhén ding ky kinh doanh lin du s 0312267721 ngay 08/05/2013, ding ky thay ddi lan thir 13
ngdy 13/4/2023 do S& Ké Hoach va Pau Tu Thanh Phé H6 Chi Minh cép.

Tru s& chinh ciia Céng ty tai: Tang 19, Toa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S5 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu,
Phudng Pa Kao, Quén 1, Tp.HCM, Viét Nam.

2. Linh vue kinh doanh
Linh vyre kinh doanh ctia Cong ty 1a: Dich vy, thwong mai.

3. Nganh nghé kinh doanh
Hoat ddng chinh ctia Cong ty la Xir ly dit ligu, cho thué va cic hoat dong lién quan. Tu vén, moi gidi,
dAu gi4 bat dong san, ddu gia quyén sir dung dit. Hoat dong kién triic va tr vén k¥ thuét c6 lién quan.
Dai Iy, méi gi6i, ddu gia. Kinh doanh bt dong san, quyén sir dung dit thudc chi s& hiru, chi sir dung
hodc di thué. Dich vu théng tin khéc.

4. Chu ky sin xuit kinh doanh théng thwing

Chu k¥ san xuét, kinh doanh théng thudng ciia Cong ty duge thuc hién trong thdi gian khéng qua 12
thang.

5. Cau tric doanh nghiép

S6 lwgng nhén vién clia Céng ty vao ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2024 la: 09 ngudi (s6 ddu nim 1a 10
ngudi).

Tai ngdy 31/12/2024 Céng ty c6 céc cong ty con duge hop nhit theo phwong phép gié gbc nhu sau:

Tén Cong ty con Nganh nghé kinh  Vén didu 18 Tylgsy Ty 1é biéu
doanh hiru quyet

Céng ty co phan BDS Mland  Kinh doanh bt 20.000.000.000 80,00%  80,00%

Mién Bic (*) ddng san

Cong ty cb phdn Nam Hoa  Kinh doanh bét 75.500.000.000 77.22%  71.22%
dong san

(*) Theo Nghj quyét sé 01/2023/NQ-DHDCP ngay 15/4/2023 ciia Cong ty c¢b phian BDS Mland
Mién Béc thong qua t& trinh vé viéc chuyén dia chi Cong ty vé dja chi T2.1815 Times City, sb 458
Minh Khai, Phudng Vinh Tuy, Quén Hai Ba Trung, TP. Ha Noi hoic dja diém khac tiy véi tinh hinh
thuc té. Tuy nhién, cho dén ngay phat hanh B4o c4o nay, Cong ty van chura 1am thu tuc thay déi Gidy
chirng nhén ding ky doanh nghiép.

6. Tuyén bo vé kha niing so sinh thong tin trén Bdo cdo tai chinh

Trong nim cdng ty khéng c6 thay ddi vé chinh sach ké toan so v&i nim truée nén khéng c6 anh
huéng dén kha ning so sdnh ciia céc thng tin trén bao céo tai chinh.
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Téng‘19, Toa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP.HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH
Béan thuyét minh bdo cfo tai chinh hop nhét (tiép theo)

IL.

1.

2‘

CHINH SACH KE TOAN AP DUNG TAI DOANH NGHIEP
Ky ké todn
Nién d9 ké toén ciia Cong ty béit ddu tir ngdy 01/01 va két thiic vao ngay 31/12 hang nim.

Pon vi tién té sir dung trong ké todn
Pon vi tién ¢ sir dung trong ghi chép ké toan la ddng Viét Nam (VND).

III. CHUAN MU'C VA CHE PQ KE TOAN AP DUNG

1.

2.

Iv.

Ché a9 ké todn ap dung

Cong ty ap dung ché d6 ké toan doanh nghiép Viét Nam ban hanh theo Théng tu s& 200/2014/TT-
BTC ngay 22 théng 12 nam 2014, Thong tu 202/2014/TT-BTC huéng dan 1ap va trinh bay bao cdo
tai chinh hop nhét ngay 22/12/2014 va Théng tw 53/2017/TT-BTC ngay 21/03/2017 vé viéc sira dbi
bd sung Théng tu s6 200/2014/TT-BTC do Bj tai chinh ban hanh, cic chuin myc ké toan Viét Nam
do Bd Tai chinh ban hanh va céc vin ban sira d6i, bd sung, huéng din thyc hién kém theo.

Tuyén b6 vé viéc tudn thi chudn myc ké todn va ché dj ké todn

Cong ty di 4p dung cac chuin muyc ké toan Viét Nam va cdc vin ban huéng din chudn muc do Nha
nu6e di ban hanh. Céc bdo cdo tai chinh duge 18p va trinh bay theo ding moi quy dinh cua timg
chudn myec, théng tir hudéng dan thyc hién chuin myc va ché do ké toan hién hanh dang 4p dung.

CAC CHINH SACH KE TOAN AP DUNG

Co s& 1ap bdo cdo tai chinh hgp nhit

Bflo céo tai chinh hop nhét dwgc lap trén co s& ddn tich (trir c4c théng tin lién quan dén céc ludng
tién).

Béo cdo tai chinh hgp nhét bao géom bao céo tai chinh cfla cdng ty me va cac cﬁng con. Cﬁng ty
con 14 don vi do Céong ty me kiém soat. Sy kiém soat ton tai khi Cong ty me ¢ quyén chi phdi cac
chinh sach tai ch{nh va hoat djng cia mot dcm vi dé thu duqc loi ich kinh té tir c4c hoat dong nay.
Khi d4nh glé quyen kiém soat cé tinh dén quyén bidu quyét tiém ndng hién dang c6 hi¢u luc hay sé
duge chuyén dbi. Két qua hoat dong kinh doanh ctia cac cong ty con dirge mua lai hodc ban di trong
nam dugc trinh bay trong béo céo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh hop nhét tir ngdy mua hodc cho dén
ngay béan khoan dau tu & cong ty con do.

Trong trudng hop chinh séch ké toan ciia cdng ty con khac v6i chinh séch ké ton ap dung tai Cong

ty me thi béo céo tai chinh ctia cong ty con s& dugc diéu chinh thich hop trudce khi sir dung cho viée
hop nhét béo céo.

S6 du céc tai khoan trong bang cén ddi ké toan giita céc cong ty trong cing tap doan, cic giao dich
ndi bg, cac khoan 1ai ndi bd chua thye hién phat sinh tir cac giao djch nay dwge loai trir khi 1dp béo
c4o tai chinh hgp nhét giita nién d6. Cac khoan 13 chua thyc hién phét sinh tir cic giao dich ndi bd
cling duge loai trir khi chi phi tao nén khoén 15 @6 khong thé thu hdi duoe.

Loi ich ctia ¢d dong thidu s6 thé hién phén lgi nhuén va tai san thudn cua cong ty con khong nim
git bdi céc ¢d ddng ciia cong ty me va duge trinh bay & khoan muc riéng trén Béo cdo két qua
hoat dong kinh doanh hop nhit giita nién d6 va Bang can d6i ké toan hop nhét giira nién d6. Loi
ich ciia c6 dong thiéu s6 bao gdm gié trj cac lgi ich clia cd dong thiéu ;.})) tai ngay hop nhét kinh
doanh ban d4u va phén lgi ich ciia ¢ dong thiéu sé trong bién ddng ctia vén chi s& hiru ké tir
ngay hop nhiét kinh doanh. Cac khoén 13 twong trng v&i phdn vén cia cd dong thiéu s6 vugt quéa
phén vén ctia ho trong vén chii s& hiru ciia cong ty con duge tinh giam vao phén lgi ich cia Tap
doan trir khi c6 dong thiéu sé c¢6 nghia vu rang budc va c6 kha ning bu dip khoan 15 d6.
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Ting 19, Toa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Pinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP.HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

Bin thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh hop nhét (tiép theo)

2. Cic loai ty gid hdi dodi 4p dung trong ké todn

Céc nghiép vu kinh té phat sinh bing ngoai t& dugc quy do: ra ddng Viét Nam theo ty gid glao dich
thyc té tai thoi diém phat sinh nghiép vu. Tai thoi diém cudi nam céc khoén myc tién té c6 gdc ngoai
t¢ dwgc phan loai la tai san 14 ty gid mua ngoai té, cdc khoan muc tién té ¢ gbc ngoai té dugc phﬁn
loai la ng phai tra la ty gia ban ngoai t¢ clia ngén hang thvong mai noi doanh nghiép thuong xuyén cé
giao dich tai thoi diém 1ap Béo céo tai chinh.

Chénh lt;ch ty gia thuc té phét sinh trong ndm vﬂ chénh léch ty gia do danh gia lai s6 du céc khoan
muc tién té tai thdi didm cudi nam duge két chuyen vao doanh thu hodc chi phi tai chinh trong nam.
3. Nguyén tic ghi nhin cic khoin tién va cdc khodn twong dwong tién

Tién bao gbm tién mit tai quy, tién giri ngén hang khéng ky han, vang tién te stir dung véi céc chire
ning cAt trit gi trj khéng bao gém céc Ioal vang dugc phﬁn loai 12 hang ton kho sir dung véi myc
dich 1a nguyén vit liéu dé san xuét san pham hoic hang héa dé ban.

Céc khoan tu'orng duwong tién 1a cac khoan dau tr ngan han c6 thoi han thu hdi hodic d4o han khong
qua 3 thang ké tir ngay mua, dé dang chuyén dbi thanh mdt lugng tién xéc dinh ciing nhu khong c6 \

nhiéu riii ro trong viéc chuyén déi thanh tién. \\
4. Nguyén tic ghi nhin cic khoin phii thu thwong mai va phai thu khic :' x Il
~ff

Céc khoan phai thu dugc trinh bay theo gié trj ghi s trir di cac khoan dyr phong phai thu khé doi. 7/

Viéc phén loai cdc khoan phai thu la phai thu khach hang, phai thu khéc dugc thyc hién theo nguyén
tic:

- Phai thu ctia khach hang phéan 4nh céc khoan phai thu mang tinh chét thuwong mai phat sinh tir giao
dich bao gdm cé c4c khoan phai thu vé tién ban hang xuét khau ty théc cho don vi khéc.

- Phai thu khéc phan 4nh céc khoan phai thu khéng c6 tinh thwong mai, khong lién quan dén giao
dich mua — ban.

Du phémg ng phai thu khé doi thé hién phan gié trj ctia cac khodn phai thu ma Cong ty di kién ton
thét c6 thé xay ra hoic khong c6 kha ning thu hdi vao ngay két thuc ky ké toan. Tang hoéc giam s&
dur tai khoan dw phong dugc hach toén vao chi phi quan ly doanh nghiép trén béo céo két qua hoat
dong kinh doanh.

Céc khoan phai thu dugc trinh bay ngén han, dai han cin cir theo ky han con lai ciia céc khoan phai
thu.

5. Nguyén tic ghi nhin hang ton kho
Hang tdn kho dugc ghi nhén theo gia thap hon gitra gia gbc va gi4 tri thuin c6 thé thyc hién duoc.
Gia gbc hang tén kho dugc xé4c dinh nhu sau:

e Nguyén vit liéu, hang héa: Bao gdm chi phf mua va cac chi phi lién quan tryc tiép khac phét sinh
dé c6 dugce hang tén kho & dia diém va trang thai hién tai.

e Thanh phim: Bao gbm chi phi guyén véit liéu chinh, chi phi nhan c6ng tryc tiép, chi phi san xuét
chung c6 lién quan dugc phin bo dya trén mirc d§ hoat dong binh thudng.

e Chi phi san xuét kinh doanh d& dang: Bao gdm chi phi nguyén vét ligu chinh, chi phi nhan cong
truc tiép, chi phi san xuét chung.

Gi4 trj thudn c6 thé thuc hién dugc 1a gi4 ban wdc tinh cia hang tdn kho cudi ky trir di céc khoan chi
phi uéc tinh dé hoan thanh va chi phi wéc tinh cn thiét cho viée tiéu thy chiing.

Gi4 tri hang tdn kho dugc tinh theo phuwong phap binh quan gia quyén va dugc hach toén theo phuong
phép ké khai thudng xuyén.

Dy phong giam gi4 hang tdn kho dugc 1ap cho timg mat hang tdn kho ¢6 gia gbc 1én hon gi trj thuin
c6 thé thyuc hién duge. P6i véi dich vu cung cip d& dang, viée 1ap dy phong giam gia dugc tinh theo
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Tang 19, Toa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP.HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

Bin thuyét minh bgo cdo tai chinh hop nhit (tiép theo)

timg loai dich vu cé mirc gi riéng biét. Tang, gidm s& du dy phong giam gid hang tdn kho cin phai

trich lap tai ngay két thiic nim tai chinh dugc ghi nhan vao gia vén hang ban.

6. Nguyén tic ghi nhin va khéu hao ti sin c6 dinh

Tai sén c6 dinh dugc thé hién theo nguyén gia trir hao mon liiy ké. Nguyén gia tai san ¢ dinh bao
gdm toan bd céc chi phi ma Doanh nghiép phai bo ra dé c6 dugc tai san c¢b dinh tinh dén thoi diém
dwa tai san d6 vao trang théi sin sing sir dung. Céc chi phi phat sinh sau ghi nhan ban dau chi dugc
ghi téing nguyén gia tai san c¢d dinh néu céc chi phi nay chic chén 1am ting loi ich kinh té trong tuong
lai do sir dung tai san d6. Céc chi phi phat sinh khong théa man diéu kién trén dwgc ghi nhén 1 chi

phi san xuét, kinh doanh trong ky.

Khi tai san ¢6 dinh duoc ban hay thanh 1y, nguyén gia va gia trj hao mon lily ké duoc xéa sb va 1ai, 15

phat sinh do thanh 1y dirgc ghi nhén vao thu nhép hay chi phi trong ky.
Khau hao duge trich theo phurong phap dudmg thing. Thoi gian khdu hao duge wéc tinh nhu sau:
Thoi gian khéu hao (niim)

Loyl il sin Nim nay Nim trudce
- Phuong tién vén tai 06 06

Nguyén gia tai san ¢ dinh va thoi gian khiu hao dwoc xic dinh theo thong tur sé 45/2013/TT-BTC
ngdy 25/04/2013 ctia Bd Tai chinh vé huéng din ché d6 quan 1y, sir dung va trich khéu hao tai san ¢b

dinh.

7. Chi phi xay dung co' ban dé dang

Chi phi xdy dyng co ban d& dang phén 4nh céc chi phi lién quan tryc tiép (bao gdm ca chi phi 13i vay
¢6 lién quan phi hgp véi chinh sach ké toan ciia cdng ty dén cac tai san dang trong qua trinh xdy
dyng, mdy méc thiét bj dang ldp dit & phyuc vy cho muc dich san xuét, cho thué va quan ly ciing nhwr
chi phi lién quan dén viéc sira chira tai san c¢6 dinh dang thyc hién. Céc tai san ndy dugc ghi nhan theo

gia gbc va khong dugc tinh khu hao.

8. Nguyén tic ghi nhin va phan bd chi phi tra truéc

Céc chi phi tra truée chi lién quan dén chi phi san xuét kinh doanh nim tai chinh hién tai dugc ghi
nhan 14 chi phi tra truéc ngén han va dugc tinh vao chi phi san xuit kinh doanh trong nim tai chinh.
Viéc tinh va phén bd chi phi tra treée dai han vao chi phi san xuét kinh doanh timg ky hach toan dugc
cin cir vao tinh chit, mirc d6 tirng loai chi phi d& chon phwong phép va tiéu thirc phin bd hop 1y. Chi

phi trd truée duge phén bd dan vao chi phi san xuét kinh doanh theo phwong phap dudmg thing.

9. Loi thé thwong mai

Lgi thé thuong mai phét sinh trong trudmg hop hop nhét kinh doanh khong din dén quan hé cong ty

me - cong ty con duge phén bd vao chi phi theo phuong phép dudng thing.

10. Nguyén tic ghi nhin ng phai tri va chi phi phai tra

Cac khoan ng phai tra va chi phi phai tra dugc ghi nhén cho s6 tién phai tra trong tuong lai lién quan
dén hang héa va dich vu da nhan dugc. Chi phi phai trd duoc ghi nhin dya trén cac uée tinh hop ly vé

s6 tién phai tra.

Viéc phén loai cac khoan ng phai tra la phai trd ngudi ban va phai trd khac dugce thyc hién theo

nguyén tic sau:

- Phai tra ngudi ban phén anh cac khoan phai tra mang tinh chit thvong mai phat sinh tir giao djch
mua hang hoa, dich vy, tai san va ngudi ban la don vi ddc 1dp véi Cong ty, bao gém ca cdc khoan

phai tra khi nhap khéu théng qua ngudi nhén iy thac.

15




CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Tang 19, Toa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP.HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

Bin thuyét minh b#o cdo tai chinh hop nhit (tiép theo)

- Chi phi phai tra phan 4anh cac khoan phai tra cho hang héa, dich vu dd nhén tir nguoi ban hodc da
cung cAp cho ngudi mua nhung chura chi tra do chwa c6 héa don hogic chua di hd so, tai lidu ké toén
va céc khoan phai tra cho ngudi lao dong vé tién lwong nghi phép, céc khoan chi phi sin xuét kinh
doanh phai trich trude.

- Phai tra khac phan anh céc khoan phai tra khong c6 tinh thwong mai, khong lién quan dén giao dich
mua, ban, cung cép hang héa dich vu.

11. Nguyén tic ghi nhan v6n chii sé hiru
Vén gp ciia chi sé¢ hivu
Vén dau tu cta chi sé hitu dugce ghi nhén theo s6 vén thuc gbp cua chii s& hiru.
Phén phoi lgi nhugn

Lgi nhudn sau thué thu nhap doanh nghiép dugc phén phdi cho ¢b dong sau khi da trich 1ap céc quy
theo Diéu 1¢ ciia Céng ty ciing nhu cac quy dinh ctia phap ludt va da dugc Pai hdi Pdng cb déng phé
duyét.

12. Nguyén tic va phwong phép ghi nhdn doanh thu

Doanh thu duge ghi nhan khi céng ty c6 kha nang nhan dugc céc lgi ich kinh té c6 thé xac dinh dugc
m@t cich chic chan. Doanh thu dwgc x4c dinh theo gia tri hop ly cua cac khoan da thu hoéc s& thu
sau khi trir di cac khoan chiét khAu thuong mai, gidm gi4 hang ban va hang ban bj tra lai. Cac diéu
kién cu thé sau ddy ciing phai duge dap tmg truée khi ghi nhan doanh thu nhu sau:

Doanh thu cung cép dich vu

Doanh thu cung cép dich vu duge ghi nhén khi két %ué cua giao dich d6 dugce xac dinh mdt cach déang
tin cdy. Truomg hop viéc cung cép dich lién quan dén nhiéu ky thi doanh thu dugc ghi nhén trong ky
theo két qua phan céng viéc da hoan thanh vao ngay lap Bang Can dbi ké toan cua ky do.

Két qua cua giao dich cung cép dich vu dugc xéc dinh khi thoa man céc diéu kién sau:

Doanh thu dwgc xac dinh twong d6i chic chin;

C6 kha ning thu duogc lgi ich kinh té tir giao dich cung cép dich vu do;

Xéc dinh duge phén cong viée da hoan thanh vao ngdy ldp Bang cin dbi ké toan;

Xéac dinh dwoc chi phi phét sinh cho giao dich va chi phi dé hoan thanh giao dich cung cip dich vu
do.

Tién lai
Tién 1ai dugc ghi nhén trén co s& ddn tich, dwge x4c dinh trén s6 dur cac tai khoan tién giri va 1ai suét
thye té timg ky.

13. Nguyén tic ké todn gis von hang bén

Gia vén hang ban dugc ghi nhan pht hop véi doanh thu phat sinh trong ky va dam bao nguyén tic
thén trong.

D6i véi chi phi nguyén vat liéu truc tiép tiéu hao vugt mirc binh thudng, chi phi nhén cong, chi phi
san xuit chung khong phan bd vao gié tri sin phdm nhép kho s& dugc hach toén ngay vao gia von
hang bén (sau khi trir cdc khoan bdi thudmg, néu c6) ké ca khi san phém, hang héa chua duge xac
dinh 14 tiéu thu.

Khodn dyr phong gidm gia hing ton kho duge tinh vao gié vén hang bén trén co s& s6 lugng hang ton
kho va phan chénh 1éch giira gié tri thuin c6 thé thyc hién duge nhod hon giéd gbc hang tén kho. Khi
xac dinh khdi lugng hang tdn kho bj gidm gi can phai trich 1ap dy phong, ké toan phai loai trir khéi
lugng hang tdn kho da ky dugc hop dong tiéu thu (c6 gia tri thudn c6 thé thyc hién dugc khong thép
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Tang 19, Toa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP.HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

Biin thuyét minh bdo cso tai chinh hop nhét (tiép theo)

hon gi4 trj ghi s8) nhung chwra chuyén giao cho khéch hang néu c6 bing chitng chéic chin vé viéc
khach hang s& khéng tir bo thye hién hop ddng.

14. Nguyén tic va phwong phap ghi nhin chi phi tai chinh

Phén 4nh nhitng khoén chi phi hoat dong tai chinh bao gdm cac khoén chi phi ho#ic céc khoan 15 lién
quan dén cac hoat dong dAu tr tai chinh, chi phi cho vay va di vay von, chi phi gép vén lién doanh,
lién két, 16 chuyén nhuong chimg khoan ngén han, chi phi giao dich ban chimg khoan; Dy phong
giam gia chimg khoén kinh doanh, dy phong tén thit diu tw vao don vi khac, khoan 18 phat sinh khi
ban ngoai t&, 16 ty gia hdi doai.

15. Nguyén tic ké toan chi phi ban hang, chi phi quén ly doanh nghiép

Chi phi ban hang phén énh céc chi phi thyc té phat sinh trong 2;1:1 trinh ban san phidm, hang ho4, cung
cép dich vu, bao gdm cac chi phi chio hang, gidi thiéu san ph , quang cdo san phém, hoa héng bén
hémg,x chi phi bao hanh sin pham, hang ho4 (trir hoat dong xdy lap), chi phi bao quén, déng goi, vin
chuyén...

Chi phi quéan Iy doanh nghiép phan 4nh céc chi phi quan 1y chung ciia doanh nghiép gdm céc chi phi
vé lwong nhan vién bd phan quan 1y doanh nghiép (tién luong, ti%n cong, céc khoan phuy cép,...); bio
hiém xa hi, bao hiém y té, kinh phi cong doan, bao hiém that nghiép ctia nhan vién quan 1y doanh
nghiép; chi phi vt liéu vin phong, cong cu lao dong, khiu hao TSCP ding cho quan 1y doanh
nghiép; tién thué dit, thué mon bai; khoan lap dy phong phai thu khé doi; dich vy mua ngoai (dién,
nude, dién thoai, fax, bao hiém tai san, chay nd...); chi phi bing tién khéc (tiép khach, h6i nghj khach
hang...)

16. Nguyén tic va phwong phap ghi nhin chi phi thué thu nhip doanh nghiép hién hanh

o

18.

Chi phi thué thu nhap doanh nghiép ghi nhén trén bao cdo két qua hoat dong bao gdm Chi phi thué
thu nhap doanh nghiép hién hanh va Chi phi thué thu nhip doanh nghiép hoan lai.

Chi phi thué thu nhép doanh nghiép hién hanh duge x4c dinh trén co s& thu nhédp chiu thué va thué
suit thué thu nhap doanh nghiép trong nim hién hanh.

Lii co ban/suy giam trén cb phiéu

Lii co ban trén cb phiéu dugc tinh bing céch chia lgi nhuéin sau thué thu nhap doanh nghiép (sau khi
trich 1dp quy khen thuéng, phic loi) phan bd cho ¢b dong s& hitu ¢b phiéu phd théng ciia cong ty cho
s6 lugng binh quén gia quyén ctia s6 cb phiéu phd théng lwu hanh trong nim.

Lai suy gidm trén cd phiéu duge tinh bing cach chia lgi nhun hoc 15 sau thué phén bd cho cb dong
s& hitu ¢b phiéu phd théng ctia Cong ty cho sé lwvong binh quan gia quyén ctia s6 ¢ phiéu phd théng
dang luu hanh trong nam va s6 lwgng binh quén gia quyén clia c6 phiéu phé thong s& dugc phat hanh
trong trudng hop tat ca cac cd phiéu phd thong tiém ning c6 tac dong suy giam déu dugc chuyén
thanh ¢ phiéu phd thong.

Béo cdo by phin

Béo céo theo b§ phén bao g6m b¢ phén theo Iinh vyc kinh doanh hodc mét by phéan theo khu vye dia
ly.

B6 phén theo linh vyc kinh doanh: La mét b ph{x.n c6 thé phén biét dugc ctia mt doanh nghiép tham
gia vao qua trinh san xuit hodic cung cép san phim, dich vu riéng 1&, mot nhém céc san phdm hogc

c4c dich vu ¢6 lién quan ma bd phén nay chju rii ro va lgi ich kinh t& khdc vé&i cac bd phan kinh
doanh khéc.

B6 phén theo khu vye dia ly: La mét bd phén c6 thé phén biét dugc cia mdt doanh nghi¢p tham gia
vao qua trinh san xuét hoic cung cp san phim, dich vu trong pham vi m6t méi trrdmg kinh té cu thé
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Pia chi: TAng 19, Toa Nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP.HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

Bin thuyét minh bzo cdo tai chinh hgp nhit (tiép theo)

ma bd phdn ndy c6 chju rii ro va lgi ich kinh té khac véi céc bd phén kinh doanh trong ciac méi
trudmg kinh té khac.

19. Cong cu tai chinh

20,

Ghi nhin ban diu

Tai san tai chinh

Tai ngay ghi nhan ban dau, tai san tai chinh dwgc ghi nhan theo gia gbc cong cac chi phi giao dich
¢6 lién quan tryc tiép dén viéc mua sim tai san tai chinh d6.

Tai san tai chinh ctia Cong ty bao gbm tién mit, tién giri ngén han, cic khoan phai thu ngén han, céc
khoan phai thu khéc va céc khoan dau tu.

Ng phdi tra tai chinh

Tai ngay ghi nhin ban dAu, ng phai tra tai chinh dwgc ghi nhén theo gia gdc trir di cac chi phi giao
dich ¢6 lién quan tryc tiép dén viéc phét hanh ng phai tra tai chinh dé.

No phai tra tai chinh ctia Cong ty bao gdm céc khoan phai tra ngudi bén, phai tra khac va céc khoan
vay.

B trir cdc cong cu tai chinh

Céc tai san tai chinh va ng phai tra tai chinh chi dwgc bu trir v&i nhau va trinh bay gia trj thuan trén
Béng cén ddi ké toan khi va chi khi Cong ty:

- C6 quyén hop phap dé b trir gia trj dd dugc ghi nhin; va

- C6 dy dinh thanh toén trén co s& thudn hodc ghi nhin tai san va thanh to4n ng phai tra ciing mot
thoi diém

Bén lién quan

Céc bén dugc coi la lién quan néu moét bén cé kha ning kiém soat hodc c6 anh huwdng déng ké dbi
v6i bén kia trong viée ra quyét dinh céc chinh sach tai chinh va hoat dong. Céc bén ciing duge xem
12 bén lién quan néu ciing sy kiém soat chung hay chju anh huéng dang ké chung.

Trong viéc xem xét mdi quan hé cia cac bén lién quan, ban chit cia méi quan hé dugc chi trong
nhiéu hon hinh thirc phép 1y.

Giao dich véi c4c bén c6 lién quan durgce trinh bay & thuyét minh s& VIL.2
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Téng 19, Toa nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM

BAO CAO TAI CHINH
Bin thuyét minh bdo cdo tai chinh hogp nhét (ti€p theo)

V. THONG TIN BO SUNG CHO CAC KHOAN MUC TRINH BAY TRONG BANG CAN POI KE TOAN

HQP NHAT
1. Tién
Tién mit
Tién giri ngén hang
Cong
2. Phai thu ciia khach hang
a) Phai thu ngén han ciia khach hang
Céng ty cb phan Pu Tu Golden Hill
Céng ty cb phin B4t Pong San BHS

Coéng ty TNHH Hoa Binh
Phai thu ngén han ctia khéch hang khac

Cong

b) Phéi thu dai han ciia khéch hang

¢) Phai thu ciia khéch hang la cdc bén lién quan: khong c6
3. Tra truée cho ngudi ban ngén han

a) Tra truée cho ngudi ban ngéin han

Cong ty cb phin Tu vén Xay dung Kién Gia
Tra truée cho ngudi ban ngin han khéc

Cong

b) Tra trude cho ngudi bian dai han

Cubi nim Piu nim
VND VND
376.286.919 1.568.447.494
2.498.951.876 6.431.100.252
2.875.238.795 7.999.547.746
Cudi nim Piu nim
VND VND

3.678.882.566
361.763.084
418.461.955
1.449.499.935

3.678.882.566
454.072.701
516.133.665
1.879.207.325

¢) Tré truée cho ngudi bn 12 bén lién quan: Chi tiét trinh by tai thuyét minh VII.2

4. Céc khodn phai thu khic

a) Phai thu ngéin han khéc
Tam irng

Ky cugre, ky quy

Tién coc du 4n

Phai thu khac

Cong

b) Phai thu dai han khéac
Ky cugc, ky quy
Cong

¢) Phai thu ciia khéch hang 1a cdc bén lién quan: Chi tiét trinh bay tai thuyét minh VIL2

19

Cudi nim Piu ndm
VND VND
34.718.637.500 37.227.633.683
283.003.780 862.500.000
35.001.641.280 38.090.133.683
Cudi niim Piu niim
VND VND
4.892.016.988 5.327.297.988
4.625.000.000 4.825.000.000
3.530.000.000 3.530.000.000
600.000.000 -
13.647.016.988 13.682.297.988
4.710.000.000 5.780.000.000
4.710.000.000 4.710.000.000
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Tang 19, Tda nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

Bin thuyét minh béo cfo tai chinh hop nhét (tiép theo)

8. Ting, giam tai sin cb djnh hiru hinh Don vj tinh: VND

Phuong tign Téng chng
vin tai
Nguyén gid TSCP hitu hinh
S6 dw ddu nam 1.293.324.454 1.293.324.454
S6 ting trong nim 800.000.000 800.000.000
Bao gm:

- Mua s&m méi 800.000.000 800.000.000
S6 giam trong nim 885.608.454 885.608.454
Bao gdm: -

- Thanh ly, nhugng ban 885.608.454 885.608.454
S6 duw cudi nim 1.207.716.000 1.207.716.000
Gid trj hao mon Iluj ké

S6 dw ddu nim 987.285.478 987.285.478
S6 tiing trong niim 185.008.804 185.008.804

- Kh#u hao trong nam 185.008.804 185.008.804
S6 giam trong nim 713.406.786 713.406.786
Bao gbm: -

- Thanh ly, nhugng bén 713.406.786 713.406.786

S6 dw cubi nim 458.887.496 458.887.496

Gid tri con lgi ciia TSCP hitu hinh

Tai ngay diu nim 306.038.976 306.038.976

Tai ngay cudi nim 748.828.504 748.828.504

Chi phi sin xuft, kinh doanh d& dang dai han Cubi nim Piu nim
VND VND

Chi phi san xuét, kinh doanh d& dang dai han (*)

49.623.353.272

50.571.491.075

49.623.353.272 50.571.491.075
Cong
(*) Bao gﬁm: Cudi nim Piu nim
VND VND
- Dy 4n " Khu dd thj m6i doc tuyén nhénh két ndi dudng trénh d6 . 2.088.800.000
thi Gia Nghia".
- Dy 4n "Khu nha & biét thy Nam Hoa" (*) 49.623.353.272 48.482.691.075

(*) Dy 4n khu nha & biét thy Nam Hoa tai phudng Nghi Hoa thj xd Cira Lo theo quyét dinh s6 2345/Qb-
UBND ngay 16 thang 07 n&m 2020 ctia tinh Nghé An v& viéc phé duyét:

- Tén dyr 4n d4u tu: Khu nha & biét thy Nam Hoa tai phudmg Nghi Hoa, thi xa Cira Lo;

- Giély phép xdy dung s6 78GP/SXD ngay 21/10/2020

- Dia diém xdy dymg: phudmg Nghi Hoa, thi x& Cira Lo, tinh Nghé An;

- Tdng dién tich: 29.922,0 m2

- Muc tiéu: La khu nha & thép ting dugc ddu ti xdy dung ddng b, ddm bao diéu kién séng va sinh hoat t6t
nhét cho dan cu sinh sbng tai dyr 4n.
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Tng 19, Toa nha Indochina Park Tower, S8 4 Nguy&n Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH
Bin thuyét minh béo cfo ti chinh hop nhit (tiép theo)

c. Cdc giao djch vé von véi cdc chii s¢ hitu va phin phéi cd tiec, chia lgi nhugn

Nim nay Nim truée
VND VND
- Vén du tur ciia chu s& hiru
+ Vén gbép ddu nam 200.000.000.000 200.000.000.000
+ Vén gép tang trong nim . .
+ Vén gép gidm trong nim - -
+ Vén gép cubi nim 200.000.000.000 200.000.000.000
d. C6 phiéu Cubi nim Péu nim
¢b phiéu ¢b phiéu
S6 lugng cb phiéu duge phép phat hanh 20.000.000 20.000.000
S6 lwong cb phiéu d ban ra cong ching 20.000.000 20.000.000
+ C6 phiéu phé thong 20.000.000 20.000.000
+ C6 phiéu wu dai - -
S6 lugng cb phiéu dugc mua lai % -
+ C6 phiéu phé théng - -
+ C6 phiéu wu dai - -
S6 lugng cb phiéu dang lru hanh 20.000.000 20.000.000
+ C6 phiéu phd théng 20.000.000 20.000.000
+ C6 phiéu wu dai - -

Ménh gid c6 phiéu dang leu hanh: 10.000 déng/cé phiéu.
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: TAng 19, Tda nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguy&n Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

Bén thuyét minh béo céo tai chinh hop nhét (tiép theo)

VI. THONG TIN BO SUNG CHO CAC KHOAN MUC TRINH BAY TRONG BAO CAO KET QUA

KINH DOANH HQP NHAT

Doanh thu bdan hang va cung chp dich vu Nim nay Nim truée
VND VND
- Doanh thu cung c4p djch vu méi giéi BDS 1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864
Cong 1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864
Doanh thu thuin vé bén hang va cung cép dich vu Nim nay Nim truée
VND VND
- Doanh thu thuin cung cép dich vy méi gi¢i BDS 1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864
Céng 1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864
Gia v6n hang ban Nim nay Nim trude
VND VND
- Gi4 vén ca dich vu méi giéi BDS 1.821.272.638 7.746.496.252
Cong 1.821.272.638 7.746.496.252
Doanh thu hoat djng tai chinh NiAm nay Nim truée
VND VND
- Ldi tién giri 3.946.566 6.360.006
Ciong 3.946.566 6.360.006
Chi phi tai chinh Nim nay Nim trudc
VND VND
- Lai tién vay - 48.947.393
Cing - 48.947.393
Chi phi ban hang Nim nay Nim trudc
VND VND
- Chi phi nhén vién - 92.794.336
- Chi phi khéc bing tién . 272.563.636
Cong - 365.357.972
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Ting 19, Toa nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguy&n Pinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM

BAO CAO TAI CHINH
Bén thuyét minh bso cfo tai chinh hgp nhit (tiép theo)

7. Chi phi quéin Iy doanh nghiép

- Chi phi nhén vién quan ly

- Chi phi d ding vin phong

- Chi phi khAu hao tai san cb dinh

- Chi phi thué, phi, 18 phi

- Chi phi trich lap du phong, hoan nhip dir phong
- Chi phi dich vu mua ngoai

- Chi phi khéc bing tién (*)

Cong
(*) Trong d6: gi tri lgi thé thwong mai 1a:
8 Thu nhép khic
- Thu tir thanh ly TSCD
- Thu nhdp khéc
Cong
9. Chi phi khéc
- Cac khoan ndp phat
- Phat vi pham hop déng
- Chi tir thanh ly tai san
- Tién coc khong dugc hoan
- Chi phi tai trg kinh phi khéo sat, 1ap diéu chinh quy hoach
(xem thuyét minh V.09)
- Chi phi khac
Cong

10. Lai co ban, suy gidm trén cd phiéu

- Loi nhudn ké to4n sau thué thu nhép doanh nghi¢p

- Céc khoan diu chinh ting holic giam lgi nhuén ké toan dé x4c
dinh loi nhuén ho#c 18 phan bd cho CP s& hiru CP phd thong

+ Cdc khodn diéu chinh ting

+ Cdc khoan diéu chinh giam

- Loi nhuan phén b cho CP s& hiru CP phd théng
- CP phd théng dang hru hanh binh quén trong nim
- Li (18) co bén trén cb phiéu

- Lai (16) suy giam trén cb phiéu

Khong c6 ¢b phiéu phd théng tiém tang suy giam trong nam va dén ngay 1ap bdo cdo ndy.

27

Nim nay Nim truée

VND VND
1.494.588.672 2.456.458.517
9.088.604 65.616.190
185.008.804 406.386.648
46.537.012 67.128.847
1.439.645.601 2.587.003.124
901.191.123 1.234.374.215

12.704.881.042

11.485.926.470

16.780.940.858

18.302.894.011

11.310.413.400

11.310.413.400

Nim nay Niam truée
VND VND
282.343.787 -
1.000.000.000 1.650.023.777
1.282.343.787 1.650.023.777
Nim nay Nim trude
VND VND
7.764.775 4.410.220
- 191.104.636
- 177.055.921
90.000.000 300.000.000
2.088.800.000
5.055.586 95.988.075
2.191.620.361 768.558.852
Nim nay Nim trude
VND VND
(17.047.949.866) (16.631.789.059)
(17.047.949.866) (16.631.789.059)
20.000.000 20.000.000
(852) (832)
(852) (832)




CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP
Dia chi: Téng 19, Tda nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Pinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP, HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

Bén thuyét minh béo cfo tai chinh hop nhét (tiép theo)

11.

Chi phi sin xuit kinh doanh theo yéu t6

- Chi phi nguyén liéu, vét liéu

- Chi phi nhén céng

- Chi phi khéu hao tai san c¢d dinh

- Chi phi trich 1ap du phong, hoan nhép dy phong
- Chi phi djch vu mua ngoai

- Chi phf khac bing tién

Cong

VIL. NHUNG THONG TIN KHAC

2.2.

Théng tin sy kién sau nién df

Nim nay Nim truwée
VND VND
1.022.249.401 16.063.188
475.686.672 3.427.880.636
185.008.804 406.386.648
1.439.645.601 2.587.003.124

4.063.125.958
12.557.159.257

9.219.951.018
11.874.202.828

19.742.875.693

27.531.487.442

Khéng c6 sy kién trong yéu nio xay ra sau ngay khéa s ké toan 1ap Bdo céo tai chinh hop nhit ddi héi duge

diéu chinh hay céng b trén Béo céo tai chinh hop nht.

Thong tin vé cdc bén lién quan

Cong Ty TNHH Biét Dong San Kent

Bén lién quan

. Danh muc cdc bén lién quan
Cic bén lién quan M0di quan hé
Céng ty CP Mland Mién Nam Ciing Thanh vién gép vén
Céng ty C6 phin Tu vén Xy dyng Kién Gia Cuing Thanh vién quan 1y chii chét

Céc thanh vién quén Iy chi chét va cdc cd nhén c6 lién quan gdm: Céc thanh vién Hoi ddng quéan trj, Ban

Téng Gidm dbc, Ké toan trdmg va céc thanh vién mét thiét trong gia dinh cac c4 nhan nay.

Giao djch véi bén lién quan

Trong nim, Céng ty phét sinh cdc nghiép vu v6i cdc bén lién quan. Céc nghiép vu chi yéu nhur sau:

Cic bén lién quan Ng§i dung nghiép vu Gi4 trj giao djch chura VAT(VND)
Nim nay Nim trwréc
Ong Mai Birc Hing Tam g 327.302.012 140.000.000
Hoan img 467.302.012 100.000.000
Cho muon 600.000.000 -
Ong Mai Birc Hoan Tam g 63.000.000 40.400.000
Hoan img 31.084.352 200.282.780
Ong Mai Nam Chuong Tam g 200.000.000 -
Hoan g 200.000.000 141.916.972
Ong Lé Tu Tam (mg - 50.000.000
Hoan tmg 37.388.000 1.398.234.139
Cong ty CP Mland Mién Phi hoa hdng méi gisi 2.358.059.468 5.168.934.443
Nam
Ong Mai Pirc Long Tam img 55.000.000 -
Thu hoi tam {mg 195.492.000 257.600.000
Nguyén Thi Hoai Thu Tam (mg - -
Thu hdi tam (g 66.605.000 637.800.000
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: Ting 19, Tda nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM

BAO CAO TAI CHINH
Bén thuyét minh bdo cdo tai chinh hop nhit (tiép theo)

Vio ngay két thiic ky ké todn, cdc khoan chura duge thanh ton véi c4c bén lién quan nhu sau:

Céc bén lién quan Cudi nim Phu niim
Tra trude cho ngudi bin (TM V.3) 34.718.637.500 37.227.633.683
Cong ty cb phin Tu vén Xay dung Kién Gia 34.718.637.500 37.227.633.683
Tam iimg (TM V.4) 4.892.016.988 5.745.924.739
Ong Mai Pirc Hing . 140.000.000
Ong Mai Dirc Hoan 44.513.988 12.598.340
Ong L& Tu . 37.388.000
Ong Mai Pirc Long 3.651.908.000 4.293.738.399
Nguyé&n Thi Hoai Thu 1.195.595.000 1.262.200.000
Phai thu ﬁgﬁn han khéc (TM V.4) 2.600.000.000 2.000.000.000
Céng Ty TNHH Bt Pdng San Kent 2.000.000.000 2.000.000.000
Ong Mai Pirc Hing 600.000.000 -
Phai tra ngudi ban (TM V.10) 519.918.990 1.764.992.560
Cong ty c6 phdn Mland Mién Nam . 1.764.992.560
Cong ty cb phin Tir vin X4y dung Kién Gia 519.918.990 -
Phii tra khéc (TM V.14) 1.138.955.000 1.138.955.000
Cong ty CP Mland Mién Nam 300.000.000 300.000.000
Ong Mai DPirc Hiing 838.955.000 838.955.000

Thu nhép ctia Hdi ddng Quan tri, Ban Téng Gidm dbc, Ban kiém soét, ké toan trudng trong nim:

Thu nhép cua thanh vién H{i dﬁng Quin trj

Ong Mai Pirc Hing Cha tich HDQT

Ong Mai Dirc Hoan TVHDQT

Ong Nguyén Quéc Hoan TVHDQT

Thu nhip ciia thianh vién Ban Kiém sost

Ba Cao Thi Giang Thanh vién BKS

Thu nhip ciia Ban Téng Gidm dbc

Ong Mai Nam Chuong TVHDQT- Téng Gidm Ddc
Ong Lé Tu TVHDQT- Ph6 Téng Gidm Déc

Thu nhip cia cdc thanh vién quén 1§ chi chét khac
Nguyén Thj Yén Anh K& toan trudmg

Cong
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Nim nay Nim truée

VND VND

165.120.000 323.613.324

150.000.000 137.500.000

- 25.000.000

- 112.500.000

51.119.988 138.005.260

- 113.819.999

188.472.000 276.000.000
554.711.988 1.126.438.583
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dja chi: Ting 19, Toa nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Pinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

Bén thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh hop nhit (tiép theo)

6. Riiiro tin dung

Rui ro tin dung & rii ro ma ddi téc s& khong thyc hién céc nghfa vy ciia minh theo quy dinh ciia mét cong cy
tai chinh ho#ic hop ddng khach hang, déin dén tbn thit vé tai chinh. Céng ty c6 i ro tin dung tir cic hoat
dong kinh doanh ciia minh (chii yéu d6i véi cac khoan phai thu khach hang) va tir hoat déng tai chinh ciia
minh bao gdm ca tién giri ngan hang va céc cong cu tai chinh khéc.

Phdi thu khdch hang

Viéc quéan ly riii ro tin dung khéach hang ciia Céong ty dya trén céc chinh sach, thi tuc va quy trinh kiém soét
clia Cong ty c6 lién quan dén viéc quan Iy rii ro tin dung khach hang. Céc khoan phai thu khach hang chua
tra thudng xuyén dugc theo ddi. Cic phan tich vé kha ning 14p du phong dugc thyc hién tai ngdy 1ap bao céo
trén co s& timg khach hang d6i voi céc khich hang 16n. Trén co s& ndy, Cong ty khong cé rili ro tap trung vé N

tin dung. )
Tién gii ngdn hang #
Phéin 16n tién giri ngén hang clia Cong ty dugc giri tai cac ngén hang 16n, c6 uy tin & Viét Nam. Cong ty nhian >
théy mirc d6 tap trung rii ro tin dung ddi véi tién giri ngén hang 1a thip. =

7. Riiiro thanh khodn

Rui ro thanh khoan Ia rii ro Cong ty géip kho khan trong viéc dép (g cdc nghia vy tai chinh do tinh trang 15555 e
thiéu vén. Ruii ro thanh khoan ctia Cong ty phat sinh chii yéu do khéng twong ximg trong céc ky han ciia tai .
san tai chinh va cc khoan phai tra tai chinh. ING TY

Cong ty gi4m sét riii ro thanh khodn biing viéc duy tri ty 16 tién miit va céc khoan tuong duong tién dmic ma ~ VHH
Ban Téng Gidm déc cho 1a du dé hd tro tai chinh cho cdc hoat dong kinh doanh ciia Céng ty va dé giam ¥ TOA
thiéu anh huéng ciia nhirng thay déi cac ludng tién. iIVA

Thong tin thoi han déo han clia ng phai tra tai chinh ciia Cong ty dya trén céc gia trj thanh toén chwa chiét E__H'éé ,
khéu theo hop ddng nhu sau: e

Tir 01 nim Tir 01 niim Cong
tré xubng dén 05 nim
S6 cubi nim 7.284.662.865 7.440.000.000 14.724.662.865
Céc khoan vay - - -
Phai tra ngudi ban 3.707.477.629 . 3.707.477.629
Phai tra khéc 3.577.185.236 7.440.000.000 11.017.185.236
Chi phf phai tra - 4 -
S6 d4u nam 9.206.550.571 7.440,000.000 16.646.550.571
Céc khoan vay - - -
Phai tra ngudi ban 5.317.006.945 - 5.317.006.945
Phai tra khéc 3.790.063.000 7.440.000.000 11.230.063.000
Chi phi phai tra 99.480.626 . 99.480.626

Cong ty cho ring mirc d§ tip trung riii ro di véi viée tra ng 1a thdp. Cong ty c6 kha néing thanh toan céc

khoan ng dén han tir dong tién tir hoat dong kinh doanh va tién thu tir c4c ti san tai chinh d4o han.

Riii ro thi trudmg

Rui ro thj trudmg 14 rii ro ma gia trj hop 1y hogic cic ludng tién trong tuong lai ciia cong cy ti chinh s& bién
dong theo nhimg thay ddi ciia gia thi trudmg,. Rui ro thi trudmg bao gdm 3 loai : Rui ro ngoai té, rii ro 13i sudt
va riii ro v& gia khéc.
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CONG TY CO PHAN TAP POAN MGROUP

Dia chi: TAng 19, Tda nha Indochina Park Tower, S6 4 Nguyén Dinh Chiéu, P. Pa Kao, Q. 1, TP. HCM
BAO CAO TAI CHINH

Bén thuyét minh bdo cdo tai chinh hgp nhit (tiép theo)

Riii ro ngoai t§

Riii ro ngoai té 14 rii ro ma gia trj hop Iy holic cic ludng tién trong twong lai ciia cong cu tai chinh s& bién
dong theo nhitng thay ddi cuia ty gi hdi doéi.

Cong ty quan 1y rii ro ngoai té biing cach xem xét thj trrdong hién hanh va dy kién khi Céng ty ldp ké hoach
cho céc giao djch trong twong lai bing ngoai t&, Cong ty gidm sat rii ro dbi véi céc tai san va ng phai tra tai
chinh bing ngoai té.

Rili ro 1ai sufit

Ruli ro 1ai suét 1 rii ro ma gié trj hop 1y ho#c céc ludng tién trong tuong lai clia mét céng cy tai chinh s& bién
dong do thay ddi lai sudt thj trudmg. Rui ro vé thay ddi 1ai suit thi trudmg ciia Cong ty chu yéu lién quan dén
tién, c4c khoan tién giri ngén han cho vay va cac khoan vay.

Céng ty quan 1y riii ro 13i suét bing cach theo ddi chit ch& tinh hinh thj trurdng c6 lién quan dé xé4c dinh chinh
sach 1ai suét hop 1y c6 lgi cho céc muc dich quan 1y giGi han i ro ctia Cong ty.

Cong ty khong thyuc hién phan tich dd nhay dbi vai 13i suit vi rii ro do thay ddi 1ai suit tai ngay ldp béo cdo
1a khéng déang ké.

Riii ro vé gia khéc

Rui ro vé gié khéc 13 rii ro ma gi4 tri hop Iy hodc céc ludng tién trong tuong lai ciia mét cong cy tai chinh s&
bién dgng theo nhirng thay ddi ca gid thi trudng ngoai thay ddi ciia 13i suft va ty gia héi doi.

Céc cb phiéu do cong ty nim giir c6 thé bj anh hudng béi céc rii ro vé gié trj twong lai ciia ¢d phiéu diu tu.

Céng ty quéan ly rii ro vé& gis cé phiéu bing céch thiét 14p han mirc d4u tu va da dang héa danh myc déu tu. «*z
'.'l.'.
9. S6 liéu so sanh ¥
" *
S6 ligu so sanh 12 sb liéu trén Béo céo tai chinh hop nhét cho nim tai chinh két thic ngdy 31 thing 12 nim ét
2023 da duge kiém tosn. Y
10, Thong tin vé& hoat dfng lién tuc
Trong nm, khdng c6 hoat ddng hoiic sy kién phat sinh ndo ¢6 anh hudng ddng ké dén kha ning hoat dong
lién tuc ciia Cong ty. Vi vdy, Bdo céo tai chinh hgp nhét ctia Cong ty dugc 14p trén co s gia dinh Cong ty s&
hoat dng lién tyc.
11. Nhimg théng tin khic
Nghi quyét sé 01/2024/NQ-DPHDCD ngay 27/4/2024 ctia Pai hdi ddng cd dong thudng nién nim 2024 thong
qua to trinh vé viéc chuyén nhuong cb phin tai Céng ty cé phin Nam Hoa. Tuy nhlén choﬂé\nngﬂy
31/12/2024 Céng ty van chua thyc hién viéc chuyén nhugng nay. AN 2267 75 ~\ / 7
) 3 p , & d(J 5 T Y\ ¢ A
Ngudi ldp bidu K& todn truémg o Iqqggiﬁ ) ¢
ﬁ(-/ i T" P B( }‘1‘
e sl =
Nguyé&n Thj Yén Anh Nguyén Thj Yén Anh Mai Nam Chwong

Thanh phé H Chi Minh, ngay 26 thang 03 nam 2025
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MGROUP THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

CORPORATION Independence - Freedom — Happiness
O —_——
No. 05/2025/CBTT-MGROUP Ho Chi Minh City, March 26, 2025

PERIODIC DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dear: Hanoi Stock Exchange

Complying with the provisions of Clause 3, Article 14 of Circular No. 96/2020/TT-BTC
dated November 16, 2020 of the Ministry of Finance guiding the disclosure of information on
the stock market, MGROUP Corporation discloses information on the separately audited and
consolidated financial statements (FS) in 2024 with the Hanoi Stock Exchange as follows:

i Name of company : MGROUP CORPORATION
- Stock symbol : MGR
- Address of headoffice : 19th Floor, Block A, Indochina Park Tower, No. 4
Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Da Kao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City.

- Phone/Tel : 028.7106.8910 Fax:
- Email : info@mgroup.vn Website: www.mgroup.vn
2. Content of information disclosure:
- Separate and consolidated audited financial statements for 2024 of MGROUP
Corporation:

O Separate financial statements (TCNY does not have subsidiaries and superior accounting
units have affiliated units);

M Consolidated financial statements (TCNY has subsidiaries);

[ General financial statements (TCNY has an accounting unit under the organization of
its own accounting apparatus).

- Cases subject to explanation of causes:

+ The audit organization gives an opinion that is not a fully accepted opinion on the
financial statements (for the audited financial statements in 2024):

O Yes [J No
- Written explanation in case of accumulation:

O Yes O No

+ Profit after tax in the reporting period has a difference of 5% or more between before and
after audit, turning from loss to profit or vice versa (for audited financial statements in 2024):

O Yes O No



- Written explanation in case of accumulation:
O Yes 0 No

+ Profit after corporate income in the statement of business results of the reporting period
changes by 10% or more compared to the report of the same period of the previous year:

M Yes O No
Written explanation in case of accumulation:
M Yes O No

+ Profit after tax in the reporting period suffers a loss, transferred from profit in the same
reporting period of the previous year to loss in this period or vice versa:

[ Yes [0 No
Written explanation in case of accumulation:
O Yes [0 No

This information is published on the company information disclosure website at
info.mgroup.vn on March 26,2025.

We would like to commit that the information published above is true and fully responsible
before the law for the content of the disclosed information.

Attachments: REPRESENTATIVE OF THE ORGANIZATION
- Separdte and consolidated sxdited financial Legal Representatw?a" Authm"lzed person to disclose
statements for 2024; information

- Explanation of business fluctuations in (Signed, state full names position, seal)

separate and consolidated reports in 2024, 2207 *:, %

5_\ ~] 1, r||__:‘-.f/
"MAI NAM CHUONG



MGROUP
CORPORATION
)

S$6: 05/2025/CV-MGROUP
About: Explanation of business
Sfluctuations in the consolidated report
in 2024.

THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom — Happiness
S B
Ho Chi Minh City, March 26, 2025

Dear: - State Securities Commission of Vietnam;

- Hanoi Stock Exchange.

MGROUP Corporation operates under the Business Registration Certificate No.
0312267721 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh

City.

Pursuant to Circular No. 96/2020/TT-BTC November 16,2020 guiding
information disclosure on the stock market.

We would like to explain the business fluctuations on the 2024 consolidated
financial statements compared to the 2023 consolidated financial statements (loss):

No. Target 2024 2023 Difference Proportion
01 | Revenue 1.875.818.093 |  8.628.902.864 6.753.084.771 | -78.26%
02 | Gross Profit 54.545.455 882.406.612 827.861.157 |  -93.82%
03 | Biisiness 16.780.940.858 |  18.302.894.011 -1.521.953.153

management

CcOosts
04 | Other Profits -909.276.574 881.464.925 -1.790.741.499 | -203,16%
05 | Profit after tax -17.631.725.411 | -16.946.967.833 -684.757.578




Profit after tax on the consolidated financial statements in 2024 loss
(17,631,725,411) is due to revenue in 2024 of VND 1,875,818,093, down 78.26%
compared to 2023, Other profit of the company is (909,276,574) down 203.16%, and
gross profit for the whole year is 54,545,455 VND, 93.82% lower than in 2023.

Low revenue and large management costs are the reasons for the business's
losses in 2024.

Above are the explanations of MGROUP Corporation on business fluctuations
on the consolidated financial statements in 2024.

Best Regards!
Sreg MGROUP CORPORATION
- As above;
- Archive office. LEGAL REPRESEN IVE

General Dirg

Mai Nam Chuong



MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION
Audited Consolidated Financial Statement
for the fiscal year ended 31 December, 2024




MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION
Address: 19 Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION (the “company”) presents its
report and the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The company

MGROUP Corporation Joint Stock Company was converted from Mland VIETNAM Joint Stock
Company. First business registration certificate No. 0312267721 dated May 8, 2013, 13" change
registration dated April 13, 2023 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh
City.

The main activities of the Company are: Data processing, leasing and related activities. Consulting,
brokerage, real estate auction, land use rights auction. Architectural activities and related technical
consulting. Agency, brokerage, auction. Real estate business, land use rights owned, used or leased. Other
information services.

Head office: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No. 4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Da Kao Ward, District 1, Ho
Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

Events since the consolidated balance sheets date

There have been no significant events occurring after the balance sheet date, which would require
adjustment or disclosures to be made in the consolidated financial statements.

The board of Management, the Board of General Directors and the Board of Controllers during the
year and as at the date of this report is:

The Board of Management

Mr Mai Duc Hung Chairman
Mr Mai Duc Hoan Member
Mr Mai Nam Chuong Member
Mr Nguyen Quoc Hoan Member
Mr Le Tu Member

The Board of General Directors

Mr Mai Nam Chuong General Director
Mr Le Tu Deputy General Director

The Board of Controllers

Ms Cao Thi Giang Leader
Ms Nguyen Thi Van Anh Member
Ms Dao Nhat Anh Member

The legal representative
The legal representative of the Company for the period and at the date of these financial statements:

Mr Mai Nam Chuong General Director
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION
Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
Report of The Board of General Directors (Cont.)

Auditors

NVA Auditing Company Limited have performed the audit on the company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements for this fiscal period.

Statement of the Board of General Directors’ responsibility in respect of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Board of General Directors is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of its operation results and
cash flows for the year. In preparing those consolidated financial statements, the Board of General
Directors is required to:

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
Prepare the consolidated financial statements on the basis of compliance with accounting
standards and system and other related regulations;

e Prepare the consolidated financial statements on going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in business.

o Establish and implement an internal control system effectively to limit the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud or error in preparing and presenting the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which
disclosed, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of Company and to ensure that the
accounting records comply with the registered accounting system. It is responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

We, The Board of General Directors has approved the consolidated financial statements attached from
page 06 to page 32 and confirm that the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended
December 31%, 2024 prepared by us, give a true and fair view of the financial position as at December
31%, 2024, its Consolidated Income Statement and consolidated Cash Flows in the year 2024 of Company
accordance with the Vietnames'f;?ccounting System and comply with relevant statutory requirements.
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Haltof the Board of General Directors
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Mai Nam Chuong
General Director
Ho Chi Minh City, March 26", 2025
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AUD'T AND ASSURANCE Quéan 1, Thanh phd H6 Chi Minh

CONG TY TNHH KIEM TOAN NVA Tel :(028)3910 3908 - (028) 3910 6162

NVA AUDIT'NG COMPANY LIMITED Email: nva@nva.com.vn

S6 54/3, Budng Nguyén Binh Khiém, Phuéng Da Kao, W E = T e e T

S6: 29.11.3.2/24/BCTC/NVA.VP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: Shareholders, the Board of Management and the Board of General Directors
MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statement of MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION prepared
on March 26", 2025, as set out on pages from 06 to 32, which comprises the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at December 31%, 2024 and the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year then ended.

The Board of General Directors’ responsibilities

The Board of General Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese accounting standards and system, and
for such internal control as the Board of General Directors determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese standards on auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amount and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.




Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have reflected fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION as at December 31st, 2024, as
well as the consolidated income statement and consolidated cash flows in the fiscal year ended on the
same day, in accordance with current Vietnamese accounting standards and accounting regimes for
enterprises and legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial
statements.

Ho Chi Minh City, March 26", 2025
NVA Auditing Company Limited

Deputy General Director Auditor
W/
Cao Thi Hong Nga Nguyen Hong Nga
Certificate Number of Registered Auditor: Certificate Number of Registered Auditor:
0613-2023-152-1 1266-2023-152-1




MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December, 2024
Unit: VND
ASSETS Code| Note Ending balance| Beginning balance|
A . TAI SAN NGAN HAN 100 63.752.040.010 70.038.859.096
I. Cash and cash equivalents 110 | V.01 2.875.238.795 7.999.547.746
1. Cash 111 2.875.238.795 7.999.547.746
2. Cash equivalents 112 - -
I1. Short-term investments 120 - -
1. Trading securities 121 - -
2. Provision for impairment of trading securities 122 - -
3. Held to maturity investment 123 - %
II1. Short-term accounts receivable 130 46.576.672.771 51.198.796.492
1. Short-term receivables from customers 131 | V.02 5.908.607.540 6.528.296.257
2. Prepayments to sellers in short-term 132 | V.03 35.001.641.280 38.090.133.683
3. Short-term internal receivables 133 - B
4. Receivable according to construction contract proj 134 - -
5. Short-term loan receivable 135 = -
6. Other short-term receivables 136 | V.04 13.647.016.988 13.682.297.988
7. Provisions for short-term bad debts 137 | V.05 (7.980.593.037) (7.101.931.436)
IV, Inventory 140 | V.06 11.797.207.820 8.631.280.455
1. Inventory 141 11.797.207.820 8.631.280.455
2. Provision for devaluation of inventory 149 - -
V. Other current assets 150 2.502.920.624 2.209.234.403
1. Short-term prepaid expenses 151 | V.07 1.702.424 104.169.401
2. VAT deductibles 152 2.388.013.954 1.991.860.756
3. Taxes and other receivables from State 154 | V.12 113.204.246 113.204.246
4. Other current assets 155 - -
B. NON- CURRENT ASSETS 200 119.998.609.276 133.445.354.951
I. Long-term receivables 210 3.649.016.000 5.280.000.000
1. Long-term receivables from customers 211 - -
2. Business capital in affiliated units 212 - -
3. Long-term internal receivables 213 - -
4. Long-term loan receivable 215 - -
5. Other long-term receivables 216 | V.04 4.710.000.000 5.780.000.000
16. Provision for doubtful long-term receivables 219 (1.060.984.000) (500.000.000)




MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated balance sheet (Cont.)

Unit: VND

ASSETS Code| Note Ending balance| Beginning balance|
I1. Fixed assets 220 748.828.504 306.038.976
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 | V.08 748.828.504 306.038.976

- Cost 222 1.207.716.000 1.293.324.454

- Accumulated depreciation 223 (458.887.496) (987.285.478)
2. Fixed assets of finance leasing 224 - -

- Cost 225 = 3

- Accumulated depreciation 226 - -

3. Intangible fixed assets 227 - -

- Cost 228 - -

- Accumulated depreciation 229 - -
I1I. Investment properties 230 - -

- Cost 231 - -

- Accumulated depreciation 232 - -
IV. Unfinished long-term assets 240 49.623.353.272 50.571.491.075
1. Expenses for unfinished production and business | 241 | V.09 49.623.353.272 50.571.491.075
2. Construction in progress 242 - -
V. Long-term investments 250 - -
VI. Other long-term assets 260 65.977.411.500 77.287.824.900
1. Long-term prepaid expenses 261 | V.07 - -
2. Deferred income tax assets 262 - -
3. Other long-term assets 268 - -
4. Commercial advantage 269 65.977.411.500 77.287.824.900

TOTAL ASSETS 270 183.750.649.286 203.484.214.047




MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated balance sheet (Cont.)

Unit: VND
RESOURCE Code| Note Ending balance| Beginning balance
A. LIABILITIES 300 17.962.167.990 20.064.007.340
I. Current liabilities 310 10.522.167.990 12.624.007.340
1. Short-term supplier payables 311 | V.10 3.707.477.629 5.317.006.945
2. Short-term advance from customers N2 V.11 2.430.204.770 2.430.204.770
3. Taxes and other payables to the State Budget 313 | V.12 13.303.797 38.099.208
4. Payables to employees 314 793.996.558 949.152.791
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 | V.13 - 99.480.626
6. Short-term internal payables 316 - -
7. Payable according to construction contract progred 317 - -
6. Short-term unearned revenue 318 - -
9. Other short-term payables 319 | V.14 3.577.185.236 3.790.063.000
10. Short-term Loans and Finance leases liabilities | 320 - -
11. Short-term payables provision 321 - -
12. Bonus and welfare fund 322 - -
I1. Long-term liabilities 330 7.440.000.000 7.440.000.000
1. Long-term payables to suppliers 331 - -
2. Long-term unrealized revenue 336 - -
3. Other long-term payables 337 | V.14 7.440.000.000 7.440.000.000
4. Long-term loans and financial leases 338 - -
B. OWNER'’S EQUITY 400 165.788.481.297 183.420.206.708
L. Equity 410 | V.15 165.788.481.297 183.420.206.708
1. Owner contributions 411 200.000.000.000 200.000.000.000
- Common shares with voting rights 411a 200.000.000.000 200.000.000.000
- Preferred stock 411b B -
2. Capital surplus 412 - -
3. Treasury shares 414 - -
4. Development investment fund 418 - -
5. Profit after tax retained 421 (55.798.049.991) (38.750.100.125)
- Retained earnings accumulated by the end of the pr| 421a (38.750.100.125) (22.118.31 1.066)“
- Retained earnings of current period 421b (17.047.949.866) (16.631.789.059)
16. Non-controlling interest 429 21.586.531.288 22.170.306.833
II. Funding source 430 - -
TOTAL RESOURCE 440 183.750.649.286 203.484.214047
AR AL B e 7
Prepared by Chief Accountant > ¢ J,/

/ .

Nguyen Thi Yen Anh
Ho Chi Minh City, March 26", 2025

Nguyen Thi Yen Anh

‘ﬁ;i Nam Chuong




MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chien, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM C

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year 2024
Unit: VND
Item Code | Note Current year Previous year
1. Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services 01 | VLO1 1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864
2. Deductible items 02 - -
3. Net revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services | 10 | VI.02 1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864
4. Cost of goods sold 11 | VL03 1.821.272.638 7.746.496.252
5. Gross profit from sale of goods and rendering of services | 20 54.545.455 882.406.612
6. Revenue from financial activities 21 | V104 3.946.566 6.360.006
7. Financial expenses 22 | VI.O5 - 48.947.393
In which: Interest payable 23 - 48.947.393
8. Profit or loss in associated companies, joint ventures 24 - -
9. Selling expenses 25 | V106 E 365.357.972
10. Administrative expenses 26 | VI.O7 16.780.940.858 18.302.894.01
11. Net profit from operating activities 30 (16.722.448.837) (17.828.432.7
12. Other income 31 | V108 1.282.343.787 1.650.023.77F
13. Other expense 33 | V109 2.191.620.361 768.558.85;
14, Other profit 40 (909.276.574) 881.464.925
15. Total profit before tax 50 (17.631.725.411) (16.946.967.833)
16. Current business income tax expenses 51 - -
17. Deferred business income tax expenses 52 - -
18. Profit after tax 60 (17.631.725.411) (16.946.967.833)
18.1 Profit after tax of parent company 61 (17.047.949.866) (16.631.789.059)
18.2 Profit after tax of non-controlling shareholders 62 (583.775.545) (315.178.774)
19. Earnings per share 70 VL10 (852) (832)
20. Diminished earnings per share 71 | VL10 (852) (832)

Prepared by

/

Nguyen Thi Yen Anh
Ho Chi Minh City, March 26", 2025

Chief Accountant

Nguyen Thi Yen Anh

Mai Nam Chuong
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT

(Under indirect method)
Year 2024
Unit: VND
Item Code Current year Previous year]
1. Cash flows from operating activities
1. Profit before tax 01 (17.631.725.411) (16.946.967.833)
2. Adjustments for
- Depreciation 02 185.008.804 406.386.648
- Provisions 03 1.439.645.601 2.337.003.124
- Unrealized exchange rate difference gains and losses 04 - -
- Gains/losses from investing activities 05 (286.290.353) 170.695.915
- Borrowing costs 06 - 48.947.393
- Other adjustments 07 - =
3. Profit from operating activities before changes in working| 08 (16.293.361.359) (13.983.934.753)
capital
- Increase/Decrease in receivables 09 4.417.308.922 8.743.210.116
- Increase/Decrease in inventory 10 (2.217.789.562) (1.116.739.207)
- Increase/Decrease in payables (excluding interest payables, 11 (2.101.839.350) (420.298.160)
|lenterprise income tax payables)
- Increase/Decrease in prepaid expenses 12 11.412.880.377 11.235.137.588
- Increase, decrease trading securities 13 - -
- Interest paid 14 - (48.947.393)
- Enteprise income tax paid 15 - %
- Other income from operating activities 16 - -
- Other operating expenses 17 - -
\Net cash flows from operating activities 20 (4.782.800.972) 4.408.428.191
I1. Cash flow from investing activities
1. Money spent on purchasing and constructing fixed assets and | 21 (800.000.000) -
lother long-term assets
2. Proceeds from liquidation, sale of fixed assets and other long- | 22 454,545.455 363.636.364
3. Cash spent on lending and purchasing debt instruments of othed 23 - -
4. Proceeds from loans and resale of debt instruments of other 24 - -
5. Money spent on investment and capital contribution to other uf 25 - -
6. Investment recovery, capital contribution to other units 26 - -
7. Interest income, dividends and profits 27 3.946.566 6.360.006
[Net cash flows from investing activities 30 (341.507.979) 369.996.370

10



MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated cash flows statement (Cont.)

Unit: VND

Item Code Current year Previous year
I11. Cash flows from financing activities
1. Proceeds from issuing shares, receiving capital contributions 31 - -
2. Cash paid to owners, stock repurchases 32 - -
3. Proceeds from borrowing 33 - -
4. Loan principal repayment 34 - (467.622.944)
5. Lease payment 35 - -
J6‘ Dividends, profits paid to owners 36 - -
Net cash flows from financing activities 40 - (467.622.944)
Net cash flows within the year 50 (5.124.308.951) 4.310.801.617
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 60 7.999.547.746 3.688.746.129
Impact of foreign exchange fluctuation 61 3 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 70 2.875.238.795 7.999.547.746

Prepared by Chief Accountant

-
/

e

Nguyen Thi Yen Anh
Ho Chi Minh City, March 26" 2025

Nguyen Thi Yen Anh
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION '
Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—
.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year 2024

BACKGROUND

Owner’s equity

MGROUP Corporation Joint Stock Company was converted from Mland VIETNAM Joint Stock
Company. First business registration certificate No. 0312267721 dated May 8, 2013, 13th change
registration dated April 13, 2023 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi
Minh City.

Head office: 19 Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No. 4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Da Kao Ward, District 1,
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

Operating field

Operating field of the Company are service and trading.

Business activities

Main business field of the company: The Company's main activities are data processing, leasing and
related activities. Consulting, brokerage, real estate auction, land use rights auction. Architectural
activities and related technical consulting. Agents, brokers, auctions. Real estate business, land use
rights belonging to the owner, user or tenant. Other information services.

Operating period

The normal operating period: 12 months.

Enterprise structure

Number of employees of the Company as of 31 December 2024: 09 people (at the beginning of the
year was 09 people).

As of December 31, 2024, the Company has the following subsidiaries consolidated using the cost
method:

Subsidiary Business field Charter capital Ownership  Voting
ratio rate

Northern MLAND Real Estate  Real estate business  20.000.000.000 80,00% 80,00%

Joint Stock Company (*)

Nam Hoa Joint Stock Real estate business  75.500.000.000 77,22% 77,22%

Company

(*)According to Resolution No. 01/2023/NQ-PHDCD dated April 15, 2023 of Mland Northern Real
Estate Joint Stock Company approving the proposal to change the Company's address to address
T2.1815 Times City, No. 458 Minh Khai, Vinh Tuy Ward, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi City or
another location depending on the actual situation. However, up to the date of issuance of this Report,
the Company has not yet completed the procedures to change the Certificate of Business Registration.
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19 Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

6. Declaration on the information comparative ability in the Consolidated Financial Statement

In the year there were no changes in accounting policies compared to the previous year, there was no
effect on the comparability of the information in the consolidated financial statements.

IL FINANCIAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING MONETARY UNIT

1. Financial Year

Annual Financial Year commences from 1% January and ends on 31% December.

2. Accounting monetary unit

The Company maintains its accounting records in VND.
II. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

1. Accaunting-System

The Company applies the Enterprise Accounting Regime issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
("Circular 200") guiding the accounting regime for enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance on
December 22™, 2014 and Circular 53/2016/TT-BTC dated March 21%, 2016 on amending and
supplementing Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance.

2. Announcement on compliance with Vietnamese standards and accounting system

The company applies Vietnamese Accounting Standards and supplement documents issued by the
State. Consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with regulations of each standard
and supplement documents as well as with current accounting system.

IV. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

1. Basis for preparing consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis (except for cash flow
information).

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the parent company and its
subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the parent company. Control exists when the parent
company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. Potential voting rights that are exercisable or convertible are taken into
account in assessing control. The results of subsidiaries acquired or sold during the year are included in
the consolidated income statement from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal of the
investment in the subsidiary.

In case the accounting policy of a subsidiary is different from the accounting policy applied at the
Parent Company, the financial statements of the subsidiary will be adjusted appropriately before being
used for consolidation of the report.

Balances of accounts in the balance sheet of companies in the same group, intra-group transactions, and
unrealized profits arising from these transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial

statements. Unrealized losses arising from intra-group transactions are also eliminated when the costs
creating such losses are not recoverable.

Minority interests represent the profits and net assets of a subsidiary not held by the parent and are
presented in a consolidated line item in the interim consolidated income statement and interim
consolidated balance sheet. Minority interests consist of the amount of the minority interests at the date
of the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses attributable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the equity of the

13
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION
Address: 19 Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

subsidiary are allocated against the Group’s interests except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Types of exchange rates applied in accounting

Economic transactions arising in foreign currencies are converted into Vietnamese Dong at the actual
exchange rate at the time of the transaction. At the end of the year, foreign currency items classified as
assets are the foreign currency buying rate, and foreign currency items classified as liabilities are the
foreign currency selling rate of the commercial bank where the enterprise regularly conducts
transactions at the time of preparing the Financial Statements.

Actual exchange rate differences arising during the year and exchange rate differences due to “\\
revaluation of balances of monetary items at the end of the year are transferred to financial revenue or 1 Y\~
expenses during the year. {AN \

Principles for recording cash and cash equivalents 1'\:; /
; yul /.,

Cash includes cash at the fund, demand deposits in bank, monetary gold used with value storage;i’, X

functions, excluding gold classified as inventory used for the purpose of raw materials to manufacture » 12>

products or goods for sale.

Cash equivalents are short-term investments with a maturity of no more than 3 months from the date of
purchase, easily convertible into a specified amount of money and without much risk in conversion into
money.

Principles of accounting receivables and other receivables

Receivables are presented at their carrying value minus provisions for doubtful debts.

The classification of receivables as trade receivables and other receivables is done according to the
following principles:

- Trade receivables reflect receivables of a commercial nature arising from transactions, including
receivables from consignment export sales to other entities.

- Other receivables reflect non-commercial receivables unrelated to buying and selling transactions.

Provision for doubtful debts represents the value of receivables that the Company expects to incur or be
unable to recover at the end of the accounting period. Increase or decrease in provision account balance
is accounted for in corporate management expenses on the consolidated income statement.

Receivables are presented as short-term and long-term based on the remaining term of the receivables.

Principle of evaluating inventories
Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
The cost of inventories is determined as follows:

e Raw materials and merchandise: Includes purchase costs and other direct costs incurred to bring
the inventories to their current location and condition.

e TFinished goods: Includes the main raw material costs, direct labor costs, and related general
manufacturing costs allocated based on normal operating levels.

e Work in progress: Includes main raw material costs, direct labor costs, and general
manufacturing costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories at the end of the period minus the
estimated costs to complete and sell them.

14



MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION
Address: 19% Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

10,

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted average method and is accounted for on a
perpetual basis.

An provision is made for devaluation of inventories for each inventory item whose historical cost is
greater than its net realizable value. Increase or decrease in balance of the provision for devaluation of
inventories that need to be appropriated at the balance sheet date is recognized at cost of goods sold.

Principles for recognition and depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are presented at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The historical cost of fixed
assets includes all costs incurred by the enterprise to acquire the fixed assets until they are in a condition
ready for use. Subsequent expenditures are only added to the historical cost of fixed assets if these
expenditures certainly increase the future economic benefits from using the asset. Expenditures that do
not meet this condition are recognized as production and business expenses in the period.

When fixed assets are sold or disposed of, the historical cost and accumulated depreciation are written
off, and any gains or losses arising from the disposal are recognized in income or expenses for the year.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis. Annual rates calculated to write off the cost of each
asset evenly over its expected useful life as follows:

Depreciation period (year)
Current year Previous year
- Transportation facilities 06 06

Cost of fixed assets and depreciation time are determined by Circular No.45/2013/TT/BTC dated
25/04/2013 issued by the Ministry of Finance on guidance on management, use and depreciation of fixed
assets and other regulations.

Asset

Cost of basic construction in progress

Construction in progress reflects costs directly related (including interest expenses related in accordance
with the company's accounting policy) to assets under construction, machinery and equipment being
installed for production, leasing and management purposes as well as costs related to repairs of fixed
assets in progress. These assets are recorded at original cost and are not depreciated.

Principles of recognition and allocation of prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses only related to present fiscal year are recognised as short-term prepaid expenses and
are recorded into operating costs.

The calculation and allocation of long-term prepaid expenses to profit and loss account in the period
should be based on nature of those expenses to choose reasonable method and allocated factors. Prepaid
expenses are allocated partly into operating expenses on a straight-line basis.

Commercial advantage

Goodwill arising in a business combination that does not result in a parent-subsidiary relationship is
amortized to expense using the straight-line method.

Principles for recognizing liabilities and accrued expenses

Liabilities and accrued expenses are recognized for amounts payable in the future related to goods and
services received. Accrued expenses are recognized based on reasonable estimates of the amount
payable.

The classification of liabilities into trade payables and other payables is performed according to the
following principles:

15

P




MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19 Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

11.

12l

13.

- Trade payables reflect the amounts payable of a commercial nature arising from transactions of
purchasing goods, services, assets, and the seller is an independent entity from the Company, including
amounts payable upon import through a trustee.

- Accrued expenses reflect the amounts payable for goods and services received from the seller or
provided to the buyer but not yet paid due to the absence of invoices or incomplete accounting
documents, and amounts payable to employees for vacation wages, production, and business expenses to
be accrued.

- Other payables reflect the amounts payable that are not of a commercial nature, not related to the
transactions of buying, selling, or providing goods and services.

Principle of equity recognition

Owner’s investment capital
Owner’s investment capital is recognized according to the amount actually invested by the shareholders.
Profit distribution

Profit after corporate income tax is distributed to shareholders after appropriations to funds as per the
Company Charter and legal regulations, and as approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Principles and methods of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the company will receive economic benefits that can be
reliably determined. Revenue is determined at the fair value of amounts received or to be received after
deducting trade discounts, sales rebates and sales returns. The following specific conditions must also
be met before revenue is recognized as follows:

Revenue from service provision

Revenue from service provision is recognized when the outcome of the transaction can be reliably
measured. If the service provision spans multiple periods, revenue is recognized in the period based on
the results of the work completed by the end of the accounting period. The outcome of the service
provision transaction is determined when the following conditions are met:

Revenue is determined with relative certainty;

Economic benefits associated with the service transaction are probable;

The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the financial year can be measured;

The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured.

Interest
Interest is recognized on an accrual basis, determined by the balance of the deposit accounts and the
actual interest rates per period.

Principle of cost recognition

Cost of goods sold in the year was recorded in accordance with the revenue generated in the period and
ensured compliance with the prudent principle.

For the cost of direct materials consumed in excess of the normal rate, labor costs, and fixed production
overheads that are not allocated to the value of warehoused products, the accountant must immediately
calculate them into the cost of goods sold (after deducting compensation, if any) even if the product or
goods have not been identified as being sold.

Provision for devaluation of inventories is charged to cost of goods sold on the basis of inventories and
the difference between the net realizable value and the cost of inventories. When determining the
volume of inventory that is subject to a decline in value for which a provision is made, the accountant
must exclude the volume of inventory that has been signed for sale (with a net realizable value not lower

16



MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

14.

15

16

17.

18.

than the value of the contract). book) but has not yet been delivered to the customer if there is solid
evidence that the customer will not abandon the performance of the contract.

Principles of financial expense recognition

Reflects financial operating expenses including expenses or losses related to financial investment
activities, costs of lending and borrowing capital, costs of contributing capital to joint ventures and
associations, losses on transferring short-term securities, costs of selling securities; Provision for
devaluation of trading securities, provision for losses on investments in other entities, losses arising from
selling foreign currencies, exchange rate losses...

Principles of recording selling expenses, administrative expenses

Selling expenses is used to record expenses actually incurred in process of selling products, goods,
providing services, including publicity expenses, demonstration expenses, advertising expenses, sale
commission, warranty charges of goods and products (excluding construction activity), maintenance
charges, cost of packing, transportation...

Administrative expenses is used to record overhead costs of business including salary expenses of
business® administrative staffs (salary, wages, subsidies,...); social insurance, medical insurance, labor
union expenses, unemployment insurance of administrative staff, expenses of office materials, labor
instruments, depreciation of fixed assets used for administration, lease rent, licence tax, provision for
bad debts, outsourced services (electricity, water, telephone, fax, assets warranty, fire and explosive
accidents,...) other cash expenses (expenses of entertainment, customer conference...).

Principles of recording corporate income tax expenses

Corporate income tax expenses recognized in the income statement include current corporate income tax
expenses and deferred corporate income tax expenses

Current corporate income tax expenses are determined based on taxable income and the corporate
income tax rate in the current period.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit after corporate income tax (after setting
up bonus and welfare funds) allocated to shareholders owning the company's common shares by the
average amount. weighted number of common shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income or loss after tax, allocated to
ordinary shareholders of the company, by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year, plus the weighted average number of common shares that would be
issued if all potentially dilutive common shares were converted into common shares

Segment reporting

Segment reporting includes a business segment or a geographical segment.

Business segment: A distinguishable component of an entity that is engaged in providing an individual
product or service or a group of related products or services and that is subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other business segments.

Geographical segment: A distinguishable component of an entity that is engaged in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of components operating in other economic environments.

17
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

19. Financial instruments

20

.

Initial recognition

Financial assets: At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are recognized at cost plus that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Financial assets of the Company comprise
cash and cash equivalents, short-term trade and other receivables, and investments held to maturity.

Financial liabilities: At the date of initial recognition, financial liabilities are recognized at cost minus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities. Financial liabilities
of the Company comprise payable to suppliers, other payables, accrued expenses and borrowings.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset against each other and presented at net value on the
Balance Sheet when and only when the Company.

- Has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts; and

- Intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

Related parties

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability to control or significantly influence the other
party in making financial and operating policy decisions. Parties are also considered related if they are
under common control or common significant influence.

In considering related party relationships, the substance of the relationship is more important than its
legal form.

Transactions with related parties are presented in Note VII.2

18
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

V. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Cash Ending balance Beginning balance
VND VND
Cash on hand 376.286.919 1.568.447.494
Cash at bank without maturity 2.498.951.876 6.431.100.252
Total 2.875.238.795 7.999.547.746
Receivables from customers Ending balance Beginning balance
VND VND
a) Short-term
Golden Hill Investment Corporation 3.678.882.566 3.678.882.566
BHS Property Joint Stock Company 361.763.084 454.072.701
Hoa Binh Company Limited 418.461.955 516.133.665
Others 1.449.499.935 1.879.207.325
5.908.607.540 6.528.296.257

b) Long-term

¢) Accounts receivable from related parties: none

Prepayments to sellers

Ending balance

Beginning balance

VND VND
a) Short-term
Kien Gia Construction Consultant Corporation 34.718.637.500 37.227.633.683
Others 283.003.780 862.500.000
Total 35.001.641.280 38.090.133.683

b) Long-term

¢) Advance payments to related parties: Details are presented in note VIL.2

Other receivables

Ending balance

Beginning balance

VND VND
a) Short-term
Advance 4.892.016.988 5.327.297.988
Deposits, mortages 4.625.000.000 4.825.000.000
Project deposit 3.530.000.000 3.530.000.000
Others 600.000.000 -
Total 13.647.016.988 13.682.297.988
b) Long-term 4.710.000.000 5.780.000.000
Deposits, mortages - 3
Total 4.710.000.000 5.780.000.000

¢) Receivables from customers who are related parties: Details are presented in note VIL2
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

8. Increase, decrease in tangible fixed assets Unit: VND
Transpotation Total
facilities

Cost of tangible fixed assets

Beginning balance 1.293.324.454 1.293.324.454
Increase 800.000.000 800.000.000
Include:

- Purchase of new assets 800.000.000 800.000.000
Decrease 885.608.454 885.608.454
Include: -

- Liquidating, disposing 885.608.454 885.608.454
Closing balance 1.207.716.000 1.207.716.000
Accumulated depreciation

Beginning balance 987.285.478 987.285.478
Increase 185.008.804 185.008.804

- Depreciation within year 185.008.804 185.008.804
Decrease 713.406.786 713.406.786
Include: -

- Liquidating, disposing 713.406.786 713.406.786
Closing balance 458.887.496 458.887.496
Net book value

Opening balance 306.038.976 306.038.976
Closing balance 748.828.504 748.828.504

8 \a\

9. Unfinished long-term assets Ending balance Beginning balance

VND VND
Expenses for unfinished production and business (¥) 49.623.353.272 50.571.491.075
49.623.353.272 50.571.491.075
Total
(*) Include: Ending balance Beginning balance
VND VND
- Project "New urban area along the branch connecting Gia Nghia - 2.088.800.000
urban bypass".
- Project "Nam Hoa Villa Residential Area" (*) 49.623.353.272 48.482.691.075

(*) Nam Hoa villa housing project in Nghi Hoa ward, Cua Lo town according to Decision No. 2345/QD-
UBND dated July 16, 2020 of Nghe An province on approval:

- Investment project name: Nam Hoa villa housing area in Nghi Hoa ward, Cua Lo town;

- Construction permit No. 78GP/SXD dated October 21, 2020

- Construction location: Nghi Hoa ward, Cua Lo town, Nghe An province;

- Total area: 29,922.0 m2

- Objective: A low-rise housing area invested in synchronous construction, ensuring the best living and
working conditions for residents living in the project.
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

c. Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends and profits

Current year

Previous year

VND VND
- Owner’s invested capital
+ At the beginning of year 200.000.000.000 200.000.000.000
+ Increase in the year - -
+ Decrease in the year - -
+ At the end of year 200.000.000.000 200.000.000.000
d. Share Ending balance Beginning balance
Share Share
Authorised shares capital 20.000.000 20.000.000
Issued shares capital 20.000.000 20.000.000
+ Ordinary shares 20.000.000 20.000.000
+ Preferred shares - -
Number of shares bought back - -
+ Ordinary shares - -
+ Preferred shares - .
Number of shares outstanding 20.000.000 20.000.000
+ Ordinary shares 20.000.000 20.000.000

+ Preferred shares -

Par value of 10.000 VND
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

VL. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OF ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

1. Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services

- Revenue from providing real estate brokerage services

Total

2. Net revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services

- Net revenue from providing real estate brokerage services

Total

3. Costs of goods sold

- Cost of real estate brokerage services
Total

4. Financial income

- Interest on deposits

Total
5. Financial expenses

- Loan interest

Total
6. Selling expenses

- Labour cost

- Other expenses in cash

Total

26

Current year Previous year

VND VND
1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864
1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864

Current year

Previous year

VND VND
1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864
1.875.818.093 8.628.902.864

Current year

Previous year

VND VND
1.821.272.638 7.746.496.252
1.821.272.638 7.746.496.252

Current year

Previous year

VND VND
3.946.566 6.360.006
3.946.566 6.360.006

Current year
VND

Previous year
VND

48.947.393

48.947.393

Current year
VND

Previous year
VND

92.794.336
272.563.636

365.357.972
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

7‘

10.

Administrative expenses

- Labour cost

- Tool & equipment cost

- Depreciation expenses

- Tax, fee and charge costs

- Provisions expenses

- Expenses from external services
- Other expenses in cash (*)

Total
(*) In which: the value of commercial advantage is:

Other income

- Revenue from liquidation of fixed assets
- Other income

Total

Other expenses

- Fine amount

- Penalty for breach of contract

- Expenses from asset liquidation

- Deposit is non-refundable

- Cost of funding survey and planning adjustment (see note V.09)

- Others

Total

Earnings per share

- Accounting profit after corporate income tax

- Adjustments to increase or decrease accounting profit to
determine profit or loss allocated to common stockholders
+ Incremental adjustments

+ Adjustments for reduction

- Profits allocated to common stockholders

- Average outstanding common shares during the year

- Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share

- Declining earnings (loss) per share

Current year

Previous year

VND VND
1.494.588.672 2.456.458.517
9.088.604 65.616.190
185.008.804 406.386.648
46.537.012 67.128.847
1.439.645.601 2.587.003.124
901.191.123 1.234374.215

12.704.881.042

11.485.926.470

16.780.940.858

18.302.894.011

11.310.413.400

Current year

11.310.413.400

Previous year

VND VND
282.343.787 -
1.000.000.000 1.650.023.777
1.282.343.787 1.650.023.777
Current year Previous year
VND VND
7.764.775 4.410.220
- 191.104.636
- 177.055.921
90.000.000 300.000.000
2.088.800.000
5.055.586 95.988.075
2.191.620.361 768.558.852

Current year

Previous year

VND VND
(17.047.949.866)  (16.631.789.059)
(17.047.949.866)  (16.631.789.059)
20.000.000 20.000.000
(852) (832)

(852) (832)

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the year and up to the date of this report.
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

11.

VII. OTHERS INFORMATION

1.

2.2,

Productions and operation costs by items

- Cost of raw materials
- Labour cost

- Depreciation expenses
- Provisions expenses

- Expenses from external services

- Other expenses in cash

Total

Events since the Balance sheet date

Current year

Previous year

VND VND
1.022.249.401 16.063.188
475.686.672 3.427.880.636
185.008.804 406.386.648

1.439.645.601
4.063.125.958
12.557.159.257

2.587.003.124
9.219.951.018
11.874.202.828

19.742.875.693

27.531.487.442

There have been no significant events occurring after the balance sheet date, which would require adjustment

or disclosures to be made in the Consolidated financial statement,

Information about related parties

.1. List of related parties

Related parties

Relation

MLAND MIEN NAM CORPORATION
Kien Gia Construction Consultant Corporation
Kent Real Estate Company Limited

Key management members and related individuals include: Members of the Board of Members, Board of

With Capital Contributors
With Key Management Members
Related parties

Directors, Chief Accountant and close family members of these individuals.

Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Company entered into transactions with related parties. The main transactions are as

Related parties Transaction Transaction value excluding VAT
(VND)
Current year Previous year
Mr Mai Duc Hung Advance 327.302.012 140.000.000
Completion 467.302.012 100.000.000
Loan 600.000.000 -
Mr Mai Duc Hoan Advance 63.000.000 40.400.000
Completion 31.084.352 200.282.780
Mr Mai Nam Chuong Advance 200.000.000 -
Completion 200.000.000 141.916.972
Mr Le Tu Advance - 50.000.000
Completion 37.388.000 1.398.234.139
Mland Mien Nam Brokerage commission 2.358.059.468 5.168.934.443
Corporation
Mr Mai Duc Long Advance 55.000.000 -
Advance withdrawal 195.492.000 257.600.000
Ms Nguyen Thi Hoai Thu ~ Advance - -
66.605.000 637.800.000

Advance withdrawal
28

pa - S T

o5 * J&
. "l/q//
S W S

4&1—"

2



MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

At the end of the reporting period, outstanding amounts with related parties were as follows:

Related parties Ending balance  Beginning balance
Advance (Note V.4) 4.892.016.988 5.745.924.739
Mr Mai Duc Hung - 140.000.000
Mr Mai Duc Hoan 44.513.988 12.598.340
Mr Le Tu - 37.388.000
Mr Mai Duc Long 3.651.908.000 4.293.738.399
Ms Nguyen Thi Hoai Thu 1.195.595.000 1.262.200.000
Other short-term receivables (Note V.4) 2.600.000.000 2.000.000.000
Kent Real Estate Company Limited 2.000.000.000 2.000.000.000
Mr Mai Duc Hung 600.000.000 B
Prepayments to sellers (Note V.3) 34.718.637.500 37.227.633.683
Kien Gia Construction Consultant Corporation 34.718.637.500 37.227.633.683
Supplier payables (Note V.10) 519.918.990 1.764.992.560
Mland Mien Nam Corporation - 1.764.992.560
Kien Gia Construction Consultant Corporation 519.918.990 -
Other payables (Note V.14) 1.138.955.000 1.138.955.000
Mland Mien Nam Corporation 300.000.000 300.000.000
Mr Mai Duc Hung 838.955.000 838.955.000

Income of Board of Directors, General Director, Supervisory Board, Chief Accountant in the year:

Current year Previous year
VND VND

Board of Directors' income
Mr Mai Duc Hung Chairman 165.120.000 323.613.324
Mr Mai Duc Hoan Member 150.000.000 137.500.000
Mr Nguyen Quoc Hoan Member - 25.000.000
Board of Controllers' income
Ms Cao Thi Giang Leader - 112.500.000
Board of General Directors' Income
Mr Mai Nam Chuong Board Member - General Director 51.119.988 138.005.260
Mr Le Tu Board Member - Deputy General C - 113.819.999
Income of other key management members
Nguyen Thi Yen Anh Chief Accountant 188.472.000 276.000.000
Total 554.711.988 1.126.438.583
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19" Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

6. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other
financial instruments.

Receivable from customers

The Company's customer credit risk is managed based on the Company's policies, procedures and controls
relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Provisions for doubtful debts are made at the reporting date on a customer-by-customer basis for major
customers. On this basis, the Company does not have any concentration of credit risk.

Bank deposits

The majority of the Company's bank deposits are held at large, reputable banks in Vietnam. The Company
considers the concentration of credit risk in bank deposits to be low.hép.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will have difficulties in paying its financial liabilities. The
company's liquidity risks mainly arise from the differences in maturity dates of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The company manages the liquidity risks by maintaining an appropriate amount of cash and cash equivalent
that the sufficient as judged by the Directors to meet the company's operation demands in order to minimize
the effects of the changes in cash flows to the company.

The terms of payment of financial loabilities are based on the payments supposed to make according to the
contracts. Details are as follows:

Under 1 year From 1 year Total
to 05 year
Ending balance 7.284.662.865 7.440.000.000 14.724.662.865
Loans - - -
Payable to suppliers 3.707.477.629 - 3.707.477.629
Other payables 3.577.185.236 7.440.000.000 11.017.185.236
Accrued expenses - - -
Beginning balance 9.206.550.571 7.440.000.000 16.646.550.571
Loans - - -
Payable to suppliers 5.317.006.945 - 5.317.006.945
Other payables 3.790.063.000 7.440.000.000 11.230.063.000
Accrued expenses 99.480.626 - 99.480.626

The Company believes that the concentration of risk with respect to debt repayment is low. The Company is
able to repay its debts when they fall due from cash flows from operations and proceeds from maturing

financial assets.

8. Market risks

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk includes three types: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and

other price risk.
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MGROUP GROUP CORPORATION

Address: 19™ Floor, Indochina Park Tower, No.4 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao, District 1, HCM City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

10.

11.

Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company manages foreign currency risk by considering current and expected markets when planning for
future transactions in foreign currencies. The Company monitors risks to its financial assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to market interest rate risks relates primarily to
short-term deposits and loans.

The Company manages interest rate risk by closely monitoring relevant market conditions to determine
appropriate interest rate policies that are conducive to the Company's risk management purposes.

The Company does not perform a sensitivity analysis for interest rates because the risk of changes in interest
rates at the reporting date is insignificant or the financial liabilities have fixed interest rates.

Other price risks

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices other than changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

The shares held by the Company may be affected by risks regarding the future value of the investment shares.
The Company manages share price risk by setting investment limits and diversifying its investment portfolio.
Comparative figures

Comparative figures are figures on the audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2023.

Information on continuous operation

During the year, no activities or events have arisen that have a significant impact on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Company's separate financial statements are prepared on the
assumption that the Company will continue to operate.

Other information

Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ-DPHBCP dated April 27, 2024 of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders approved the proposal on the transfer of shares at Nam Hoa Joint Stock Company However, as
of December 31, 2024, the Company has not yet carried out this transfer. : g :

Prepared by Chief Accountant

~Nguyen Thi Yen Anh ~Nguyen Thi Yen Anh Mai Nam Chuong

Ho Chi Minh City, March 26", 2025
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